
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
 
To: Members of the Informal Shadow Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Informal Shadow 
Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 

 

Thursday, 22 March 2012 at 9.30 am 
 

Long Room,  Oxford Town Hall, Oxford OX1 1BX 

 
Membership 

 
Chairman – Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE 

Vice Chairman - Dr Stephen Richards 
 

Board Members: 
 
Councillor Mark Booty 
(West Oxfordshire District Council) 

Chairman of the Health Improvement Board 

Sue Butterworth Chair of Public Involvement Board 

Councillor Louise Chapman 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 

Chairman of the Children & Young People’s Board 

Councillor Arash Fatemian 
(Oxfordshire County Council) 

Chairman of the Adult Health & Social Care Board 

John Jackson Director for Social & Community Services 

Dr Mary Keenan Vice Chairman of the Children & Young People’s Board 

Dr Joe McManners Vice Chairman of the Adult Health & Social Care Board 

Dr Jonathan McWilliam Director of Public Health 

Councillor Val Smith 
(Oxford City Council) 

Vice Chairman of the Health Improvement Board 

Jim Leivers Director for Children, Education & Families 
 
Notes: 
 
• Date of next meeting: 26 July 2012 

 
Peter G. Clark  
County Solicitor March 2012  
  
Contact Officer: Julie Dean Tel: (01865) 815322 

Email: julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, ie where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 



 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

1. Welcome by Chairman, Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE  
 

2. Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments  
 

3. Declarations of Interest - see guidance note opposite  
 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Note of Decisions of Last Meeting  
 

 9.30 
5 mins 
 
To approve the Note of Decisions of the meeting held on  24 November 2011                 
(HWB5) and to receive information arising from them.  
 

6. Approval of Terms of Reference for the Partnership Boards  
 

 9:35 
5 mins 
 
Person Responsible:  Members of the respective Partnership Boards 
Reports presented by: Peter Clark, Head of Law & Governance 
 
Action required: To approve the draft Terms of Reference for the following 
Partnership Boards as set out at HWB6: 
 

• Adult Health & Social Care Partnership Board 
• Oxfordshire Children & Young People’s Partnership Board 
• Health Improvement Partnership Board  

 

7. Overview of the new and emerging powers and duties of the Health & 
Wellbeing Board  

 

 9:40 
5 mins 
 
Person(s)  Responsible: Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
Person giving report: Director of Public Health 
 
Dr McWilliam will give an overview (HWB7) of  new and emerging powers and duties in 
so far as they relate to member organisations and of the Board itself. 



- 2 - 
 

 

 
Action Required: To note the new powers and duties.  
 

8. Priorities from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Health and 
Wellbeing as summarised in the Director of Public Health Annual Report  

 

 9:45 
10 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: All Members of the Board 
Person giving report: Director of Public Health 
 
Dr McWilliam will give an overview from the fifth Director of Public Health Annual 
Report (attached at HWB8) which reviewed the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
(JSNA) data from the last four years; with a view to reviewing County priorities for 
health and wellbeing and to make recommendations for the Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 
Action Required: to note the overview. 
 

9. Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Adult 
Health & Social Care Partnership Board  

 

 9:45 
25 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Adult Health & Social Care Board 
Persons giving the report: Chairman and Vice Chairman of the Adult Health & Social 

Care Board 
 
Councillor Arash Fatemian and Dr Joe McManners will present proposals for tackling 
the highest  priorities for Adult Health and Social Care as set out in HWB9. 
 
Action required: To approve proposals for tackling the highest priorities for Adult 
Health and Social Care. 
   

10. Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Children & 
Young People's Partnership Board  

 

 10:20 
25 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Children & Young People’s 

Partnership Board 
Person(s) giving the report: Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Children & Young 

People’s Partnership Board 
 
Councillor Louise Chapman and Dr Mary Keenan will present proposals for tackling the 
highest priorities for the Children & Young People’s Partnership Board as set out in 
HWB10. 



- 3 - 
 

 

 
Action Required: To approve the highest priorities and outcomes for the Children 
& Young People’s Partnership Board.  
 

11. Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Health 
Improvement Partnership Board  

 

 10:45 
25 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: The Health Improvement Partnership Board 
Person(s) giving the report: Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Health Improvement 

Partnership Board 
 
Councillors Mark Booty and Val Smith will present proposals for tackling the highest 
priorities for Health Improvement as set out in HWB11. 
 
Action Required: To approve the proposals for tackling the highest priorities for 
Health Improvement.  
  

12. Progress report on establishment of the Public Involvement Board  
 

 11:10 
15 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Public Involvement Board 
Person giving the report: Chairman of Public Involvement Board 
 
Sue Butterworth will give an oral update on progress in relation to the establishment of 
the Public Involvement Board and on the principles of operation. 
 
This item is for information. 
 

13. Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy and Forward Plan  
 

 11:25 
5 mins 
 
Person(s) Responsible: Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
Person giving the report: Director for Social & Community Services 
 
John Jackson, Director for Social & Community Services will lead a discussion on the 
process and timing for the production of the draft Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy 
(HWB13). 
 
Action Required: To agree the process and timing for the production of the draft 
Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy.  
 



- 4 - 
 

 

14. Implications of the Health & Wellbeing Board priorities for the work of 
partner organisations  

 

 11.30 
10 mins 
 
Person(s) responsible: Members of the Health & Wellbeing Board 
Person giving the report: Chairman and Vice - Chairman of the Health & Wellbeing 

Board and Chairman of the Health Improvement Board 
 
Dr Stephen Richards and Councillors Keith Mitchell and Mark Booty will lead some 
reflections on today’s Board discussions in relation to the day to day work of the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and the County and District Councils.  
 



 

 

 
 

 
INFORMAL SHADOW OXFORDSHIRE HEALTH & WELLBEING 

BOARD 
 
OUTCOMES of the meeting held on Thursday, 24 November 2011 commencing at 
11.00 am and finishing at 12.25 pm 
 
Present: 
 

 

Board Members: Councillor Keith R. Mitchell CBE – in the Chair 
 

 Dr Stephen Richards (Vice-Chairman) 
District Councillor Mark Booty 
Councillor Val Smith 
Dr Jonathan McWilliam 
Sue Butterworth 
Councillor Arash Fatemian 
John Jackson 
Councillor Louise Chapman 
Dr Mary Keenan 
Jim Leivers 
 

Officers: 
 

 

Whole of meeting Joanna Simons, Peter Clark and Julie Dean (Oxfordshire 
County Council). 
 

Part of meeting 
 

Matthew Tait (Buckinghamshire & Oxfordshire NHS 
Cluster). 
 

 
These notes indicate the outcomes of this meeting and those responsible for taking the 
agreed action. For background documentation please refer to the agenda and supporting 
papers available on the Council’s web site (www.oxfordshire.gov.uk.) 
 
If you have a query please contact Julie Dean Tel: (01865) 81532 (Email: 
julie.dean@oxfordshire.gov.uk) 
 

 ACTION 

1 Welcome by the Chairman, Councillor Keith R. Mitchell 
CBE 

 

 

2 Apologies for Absence and Temporary Appointments 
 

 

 
An apology was received from Dr. Joe McManners, Vice 
Chairman, Adult Health & Social Care Board 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 1



 

 
3 Declarations of Interest - see guidance note opposite 
 

 

 
There were no Declarations of Interests from Board members. 
 

 

4 Petitions and Public Address 
 

 

 
Cllr Peter Skolar, Chairman of the Oxfordshire Joint Health 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee, addressed the Board wishing it 
well for the future and urging it to keep in mind the advantageous 
position it holds, in light of its standing, to promote the integration 
of the different agencies involved, in order that unnecessary 
logistical problems could be avoided. 
 

 

5 Draft Terms of Reference for the Board 
 

 

 
Peter Clark, County Solicitor & Monitoring Officer presented the 
Board with draft Terms of Reference for consideration (HWB5). 
 
The draft Terms of Reference for the Health & Wellbeing Board 
were AGREED subject to the following amendments: 
 
- Responsibilities – third bullet point becomes the second and 

vice versa; 
- Membership – clarification that the Chairman of the Public 

Involvement Board be the Chairman of HealthWatch; 
- Governance – the Health & Wellbeing Board to meet three 

times per year. The sub-Boards to determine the frequency of 
their meetings etc; and 

- the implicit reference to integration to be made explicit within 
the overall text of the Terms of Reference. 
 

 
 
 
 
) 
) 
) 
) 
) 
Peter 
Clark/Glenn 
Watson 
) 
) 
) 
) 
 
 
 

6 Setting the Scene 
 

 

 
The Board noted a presentation and paper given by Dr Jonathan 
McWilliam, Director of Public Health (HWB6) that aimed to set the 
scene for the work of Oxfordshire's Health and Wellbeing Board. 
It painted a high-level picture of the task before the Board and 
gave an overview of the possible priorities for discussion. 
 
A copy of the presentation is attached. 
 
 
 

 
) 
) 
All to note 
) 
) 

Page 2



 

7 General Principles 
 

 

 
John Jackson, Director for Social and Community Services, 
presented a paper (HWB7), which set out an envisaged structure 
for the Oxfordshire Health and Wellbeing apparatus. A draft 
Statement of General Principles for the work of the Board was 
also presented. 
 
Following a question and answer session, the Board noted the 
paper and AGREED the Statement of General Principles for the 
Work of the Health & Wellbeing Board.. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All to note. 

8 The Role of the other Boards 
 

 

 
The Board NOTED the presentations given by Councillor Mark 
Booty, Chairman of the Health Improvement Board; Cllr Arash 
Fatemian, Chairman of the Adult Health & Social Care Board; and 
Cllr Louise Chapman, Chairman of the Children & Young 
People’s Board on the vision, the context, the proposed 
membership, the direction of travel and priorities of their 
respective Boards (HWB8 (a),(b) & (c). 
 

 
) 
) 
) 
All to note 
) 
) 
) 

9 Development of the Public Involvement Board 
 

 

 
Sue Butterworth, the future Chair of the Public Involvement 
Board, outlined the progress and plans for the commissioning of 
Oxfordshire’s HealthWatch; and plans for developing the Public 
Involvement Board within the proposed Health & Wellbeing Board 
arrangements (HWB9). 
 
The Board NOTED the report and thanked Sue Butterworth for 
her presentations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All to note 

10 Towards a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

 

 
The Board NOTED a short verbal summary given by John 
Jackson on the steps that would now be taken towards the 
production of a draft Joint Health & Well Being Strategy, for 
consideration at the next meeting. Further consultation on its 
development was to take place with key stakeholders. It was 
envisaged that the Strategy would be short and accessible which 
would be conducive to good engagement from the public. Plans 
were in place for the draft Strategy to be the subject of discussion 
at the first meetings of the respective Boards. 
 
 

 
) 
) 
) 
) 
All to note 
) 
) 
) 
) 

Page 3



 

11 Next Steps 
 

 

 
The Board NOTED a verbal summary by Jonathan McWilliam of 
the next steps to be taken: 
 

• The Partnership Boards would agree their draft Terms of 
Reference for submission to the Health & Wellbeing Board 
for approval; 

• They would finalise their outcomes/priority work plans 
which would feed into the draft formal Strategy for approval 
at the next meeting of the Health & Wellbeing Board; 

• Throughout the above process, the Public Involvement 
Board would be shaping up some firm proposals for public 
participation to submit to the March meeting; 

 
The Board AGREED that there would be three meetings a year 
on dates to be determined shortly. 
 

 

12 Close of meeting 
 

 

 
The meeting closed at 12.25 pm. 
 

 

13 The following papers had been included for information 
only 

 

 

HWB13a Health and Wellbeing – information on relevant 
legislation 
HBW13b Performance Framework for Public Health 
HWB13c Outcome Framework for Adult Health and Social Care 
HWB13d Outcome Framework for Children and Young People 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 in the Chair 
  
Date of signing   

Page 4



HWB6   

Version 070312 

Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 

Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board 

Terms of Reference 

 

Purpose: 

The Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board is the principal structure in 
Oxfordshire with responsibility for promoting the health and wellbeing of the people of the 
county.    

The Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board exists to support the Health and Well 
Being Board in this purpose by delivering service change and improved outcomes through 
partnership working. 

Responsibilities: 

To achieve its purpose, the Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board (Partnership 
Board) has the following responsibilities: 

• To demonstrate effective partnership working across Oxfordshire to meet peoples’ 
health and social care needs and to achieve effective use of resources 

• To deliver the priorities and objectives arising from the Joint Health and Wellbeing 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Oxfordshire,  

• In particular to  
a. Report on the delivery of identified joint existing key performance targets for the 

NHS and County Council  
b. Contribute to the overall joint strategy and make specific recommendations on 

the key outcomes for each of the adult client groups in Oxfordshire and for 
strategic issues that cut across more than one adult client group 

c. Be responsible for holding Joint Management Groups (JMG’s) to account for the 
delivery of the joint commissioning strategies and comment on the joint 
governance of pooled budgets 

• To meet the performance measures agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
  
Membership 
 
The core membership of the Partnership Board is: 
• The County Council Cabinet Member for Adult Services who is also the Chairman of 

the Board 
• Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group GP who is also Vice Chairman 
• Director for Social and Community Services, County Council 
• Director for Transition and Partnerships, Clinical Commissioning Consortium 
• Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group GP 
• District Council Councillor 
• Public Involvement Board representative(s) 

 
In attendance 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



HWB6   

Version 070312 

• Deputy Director, Joint Commissioning, Oxfordshire County Council 
• Chairman, Joint Management Groups 
• Head of Partnerships, NHS Oxfordshire 
• Partnership Development Manager, District Councils 
• Strategy & Performance Manager, Oxfordshire County Council 

 
It is proposed that a wide range of stakeholders can be invited to Board meetings at the 
discretion of the Chairman. They may attend as expert witnesses and to report on 
implementation of plans. 
 
Governance  
 
The meetings of the Partnership Board and its decision-making will be subject to the 
provisions of the County Council’s Constitution including the Council Procedure Rules and 
the Access to Information Procedure Rules, insofar as these are applicable to the 
Partnership Board in its shadow form. 
 
The Partnership Board will also be subject to existing scrutiny arrangements with 
Oxfordshire’s Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee providing the lead role. 
 
Members of the Group will be subject to the Code of Conduct applicable to the body which 
they represent. 
 
The Partnership Board will meet at least three times a year.  Dates, times and places of 
meeting will be determined by the Chairman of the Partnership Board. 
 
The County Council’s Joint Commissioning Team will service the meetings of the 
partnership board including the preparation and circulation of agendas and minutes. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will agree terms of reference and membership for the 
Partnership Board. It will also agree its priorities, proposed outcomes and performance 
measures.   
 
The partnership board will review the terms of reference on an annual basis 
 
Peter Clark 
 
County Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
March 2012 
 

 

Page 6



HWB6 

 
 

Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Children and Young People’s Partnership Board 

Terms of Reference 

Purpose: 

The Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board is the principal structure in 

Oxfordshire with responsibility for promoting the health and wellbeing of the people of the 

county.    

The Children and Young People’s Partnership Board exists to support the Health and 

Wellbeing Board in this purpose by delivering service change and improved outcomes 

through partnership working. 

 

Responsibilities: 

To achieve its purpose, the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board (Partnership 

Board) has the following responsibilities: 

• To demonstrate effective partnership working across Oxfordshire to meet peoples’ 

health and social care needs and to achieve effective use of resources 

• To deliver the priorities and objectives arising from the Joint Health and Wellbeing 

Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Oxfordshire,  

• In particular to 

a. Contribute to the overall joint strategy and make specific recommendations on 

the  key outcomes for children and young people in Oxfordshire and as they 

move into adulthood. 

b. Report on the delivery of joint existing key performance targets for children and 

young people for the NHS and County Council 

c. Be responsible for holding the Joint Management Group (JMG) to account in 

relation to Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)and 

comment on the joint governance of pooled budgets for children 

Page 7



HWB6 

 
 

d. Contribute to the development of  pooled budgets where they will enable 

delivery of key outcomes 

• To meet the performance measures agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 

  

 

Membership 

 

The core membership of the Partnership Board is: 

• The County Council Cabinet Member for Children’s Services who is also the Chairman 

of the Board 

• Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group GP who is also Vice Chairman 

• Director for Children’s Services, County Council 

• Assistant Director Public Health 

• Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning Group GP representative 

• Chair, Oxfordshire Safeguarding Children Board 

• District Council Member 

• Public Involvement Board representative(s) 

 

In attendance 

• Sara Livadeas, Deputy Director, Joint Commissioning, Oxfordshire County Council 

• Sarah Breton, Lead Commissioner, Children & Young People 

• Val Johnson, Partnership Development Manager, Oxfordshire’s District Councils 

• Hannah Farncombe, Safeguarding Manager 

• Public Engagement Team (to support the Public Involvement Board representatives) 

 

It is proposed that a wide range of stakeholders can be invited to Board meetings at the 

discretion of the Chairman. They may attend as expert witnesses and to report on the 

implementation of plans. 

 

 

Governance  

 

The meetings of the Partnership Board and its decision-making will be subject to the 

provisions of the County Council’s Constitution including the Council Procedure Rules and 

Page 8



HWB6 

 
 

the Access to Information Procedure Rules, insofar as these are applicable to the 

Partnership Board in its shadow form. 

 

The Partnership Board will also be subject to existing scrutiny arrangements with 

Oxfordshire’s Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee providing the lead role. 

 

Members of the Group will be subject to the Code of Conduct applicable to the body which 

they represent. 

 

The Partnership Board will meet at least three times a year.  Dates, times and places of 

meetings will be determined by the Chairman of the Sub Board. 

 

The County Council’s Joint Commissioning Team will service the meetings of the 

partnership board including the preparation and circulation of agendas and minutes. 

  

The Health and Wellbeing Board will agree terms of reference and membership for the 

Partnership Board. It will also agree its priorities, proposed outcomes and performance 

measures. 

 

The Partnership Board will review the Terms of Reference on an annual basis.   

 

 

 

Peter Clark 

 

County Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 

 

March 2012. 

 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



HWB6 

Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board 

 

Health Improvement Partnership Board 

 

Terms of Reference 

Purpose: 

The Oxfordshire Shadow Health and Wellbeing Board is the principal structure in 
Oxfordshire with responsibility for promoting the health and wellbeing of the people 
of the county.    

The Health Improvement Partnership Board exists to support the Health and 
Wellbeing Board in this purpose by delivering service change and improved 
outcomes through partnership working. 

Responsibilities: 

To achieve its purpose, the Health Improvement Partnership Board (or H Imp B) has 
the following responsibilities: 

• To demonstrate effective partnership working across Oxfordshire to meet 
peoples’ health and social care needs and to achieve effective use of resources 

• To deliver the priorities and objectives arising from the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Oxfordshire,  

• In particular to  
• Bring a coordinated and coherent approach to influencing a broad range of 

determinants of health to bring about health improvement 
• Work together to recommend priority areas to improve health in order to 

make a real and measurable difference to outcomes 
• Recommend actions and responsibilities to make that improvement a 

reality 
• Hold each other to account for making the agreed change and for 

reporting progress 
• To meet the performance measures agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
  
Membership 
 
The core membership of the Sub Board is: 
• Chairman – District Council representative 
• Vice Chairman – District Council representative 
• County Councillor 
• Clinical Commissioning Group representative 
• Director of Public Health 
• Assistant Director of Public Health 

Page 11



HWB6 

• District Council officer representative 
• Public Involvement Board representative 

 
In attendance 
• Chief Fire Officer as Chairman of the Safer Communities Business Group 
 
It is proposed that a wide range of stakeholders can be invited to Board meetings at 
the discretion of the Chairman.  They may attend as expert witnesses and to report 
on implementation of plans. 
 
 
Governance  
 
The meetings of the Partnership Board and its decision-making will be subject to the 
provisions of the County Council’s Constitution including the Council Procedure 
Rules and the Access to Information Procedure Rules, insofar as these are 
applicable to the Partnership Board in its shadow form. 
 
The Board will also be subject to existing scrutiny arrangements with Oxfordshire’s 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee providing the lead role. 
 
Members of the Group will be subject to the Code of Conduct applicable to the body 
which they represent. 
 
The Partnership Board will meet at least three times a year.  Dates, times and places 
of meeting will be determined by the Chairman of the Partnership Board. 
 
The County Council’s Joint Commissioning team will service meetings of the 
Partnership Board including the preparation and circulation of agendas and minutes.  
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will agree terms of reference and membership for 
the Partnership Board. It will also agree its priorities, proposed outcomes and 
performance measures.   
 
The partnership board will review the terms of reference on an annual basis 
 
 
 
Peter Clark 
 
County Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
March 2012. 
 

 

Page 12



HWB7 

 

Informal Shadow Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board  
22 March 2012 

 
Overview of the new and emerging powers and duties of the 

Health & Wellbeing Board. 
 
Summary 
This paper sets out the latest information from guidance and policy 
documents published in the last 2 months.  This covers the expanding remit of 
Health and Wellbeing Boards, the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and the 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  This information will have relevance to 
developing role of the Health and Wellbeing Board in Oxfordshire. 

 

The expanding remit of the Health and Wellbeing Board (H&WB) 
 
The remit of the health and well-being Board is increasing with each 
successive document emanating from central government.  A summary of 
powers and duties of Local Authorities and NHS organisations is included at 
annex 1.  
 
The main points are: 
• Local authority led H&WBs are increasingly seen as the overseer of health 

in counties across England - rather like a local 'Ministry of Health and 
Wellbeing' with the chair acting as Minister. 

• The basic function of the H&WB is to set a strategic direction for health, 
well-being and social care across a patch, pulling together the efforts of 
local government the NHS and the new Healthwatch organisations.  

• H&WBs are also increasingly seen as a means to hold Clinical 
Commissioning Groups to account for delivery of a strategic plan and to 
take a view on the fitness of the local Clinical Commissioning Group to 
carry out its functions. 

• The H&WB is also accountable for delivering the JSNA. The JSNA will pull 
together a very wide range of local information on health and the factors 
underpinning health and will use it to formulate strategic priorities for 
action in the County. The JSNA is now the joint responsibility of the Local 
Authority and the Clinical Commissioning Group 

• The JSNA will become a driving force in health and social care planning. It 
needs to be refreshed by March 2012 and completely overhauled by 
March 2013.  

• The H&WB is also accountable for producing a health and well-being 
strategy. This is again a joint effort between local government and Clinical 
Commissioning Groups. Priority setting for a first health and well-being 
strategy for Oxfordshire is currently underway and the first strategy will be 
prepared to influence strategic priority setting in the County Council and 
the Clinical Commissioning Group later in 2012. 

Agenda Item 7

Page 13



HWB7 

 

• Local Authorities are being encouraged to delegate functions and budgets 
to H&WBs where they feel this as appropriate so as to drive forward the 
integration of health and social care and tackle the broader determinants 
of health such as housing issues. 

 
In summary, the H&WB is becoming an increasingly powerful body in 
overseeing the health of this population.  We are confident that our local 
H&WB arrangements are fit for purpose and the 4 supporting Partnership 
Boards give a depth and a practicality to this work that is lacking in other 
counties.  
 
  

Page 14



HWB7 

 

Annex 1 - roles and responsibilities for local government, 
clinical commissioning groups and other agencies in 
delivering health and well-being boards, JSNAs and health 
and well-being strategies 
 
Taken from 'JSNAs and joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies – draft 
guidance'  (published January 2012)  
 

Summary of responsibilities 
 

1. Health and Wellbeing Boards 
a.  Establishment of the H&WB Board 

o Power to appoint additional Board members 
o Power to exercise functions jointly with other H&WB Board(s) 

b.  Functions of Board 
o Power to request information to enable or assist its functions, from the 

Local Authority or any H&WB Board members or representatives 
o Duty to prepare JSNA  
o Duty to involve third parties in preparation of JSNA and JHWS – 

Healthwatch, people living or working in the area, District councils 
o Power to consult anyone appropriate in producing JSNA 
o Duty to prepare JHWS  
o Duty go consider NHS Commissioning Board mandate and statutory 

guidance in developing JSNA and JHWS 
o Duty to consider Health Act flexibilities in producing JHWS 
o Power to state views on how commissioning of Health and Social Care 

services, and wider health related services could be more closely 
integrated (within JHWS) 

c.  Associated functions 
o Duty to promote integrated working between commissioners and using 

health act flexibilities (like pooled budgets and lead commissioning) 
o Power to encourage integrated working across wider determinants of 

health 
d.  Ensuring alignment of commissioning plans 

o Duty to be involved in preparing or revising CCG commissioning plan  
o Duty to provide an opinion on whether it has taken account of the 

JHWS.   
o Power to write to NHS Commissioning Board (NHSCB) with that 

opinion on CCG commissioning plan (copy to CCG).   
o Power to give an opinion to NHS CB on final published plan 
o Duty to review how well the CCG commissioning plan has contributed 

to the delivery of the JHWS 

Page 15



HWB7 

 

o Duty to give a view on how well the CCG has contributed to the 
delivery of the JHWS as part of annual performance assessment of 
CCG 

 
2. Clinical Commissioning Group 
a.  Establishment of H&WB Board 

o Duty to send representative to H&WB Board 
b.  Functions of H&WB Board 

o Duty to cooperate with H&WB Board in exercise of its functions 
o Duty to provide information when requested by H&WB Board to enable 

or assist its functions 
o Duty to prepare JSNA for local authority area (equal duty of all 

partners) 
o Duty to prepare JHWS for local authority area 

c. Other associated functions 
o Duty to have regard for JSNA and JHWS in exercise of relevant 

commissioning functions 
d. Ensuring alignment of commissioning plans 

o Duty to involve H&WB Board in preparing or revising the 
commissioning plan, including consulting on whether it has taken 
proper account of JHWS 

o Duty to include statement of the final opinion of the H&WB Board in the 
published commissioning plan 

o Duty to review how well the commissioning plan has contributed to the 
delivery of the JHWS and to seek opinion of H&WB Board on this. 

e. Other duties, contributed through JSNA and JHWS 
o Duty to exercise functions with a view to scrutinising continuous 

improvement in quality of services 
o Duty to act with a view to secure continuous improvement in outcomes 

achieved 
o Duty to exercise functions with regard to need to reduce inequalities 

between patients in outcomes and access to services 
o Duty to promote the involvement of patients, their carers and reps in 

decisions about provision of health services 
o Duty to promote innovation in the provision of health services 
o Duty to exercise functions with a view to securing integration in the 

provision of health services, H&SC services, to improve quality of 
patient services or reduce inequalities between patients in outcomes or 
access to services 

 
3. Local Authorities 
a. Establishment of H&WB Board 

o Duty to send representative to H&WB Board 

Page 16



HWB7 

 

o Power to appoint additional members to the Board as appropriate (in 
initial set up only) 

b.  Functions of H&WB Board 
o Duty to provide information when requested by H&WB Board to enable 

or assist its functions 
o Duty to prepare JSNA for local authority area (equal duty of all 

partners) 
o Duty to prepare JHWS for local authority area 
o Duty to publish JSNA  
o Duty to publish JHWS 

c. Other associated functions 
o Duty to have regard for JSNA and JHWS in exercise of relevant 

commissioning functions 
o Power to delegate any local authority function (except scrutiny) to he 

H&WB Board 
 
4. NHS Commissioning Board 
a. Establishment of H&WB Board 

o Duty to send representative to H&WB Board when requested (not a 
permanent member) 

b. Functions of H&WB Board 
o Duty to provide information when requested by H&WB Board to enable 

or assist its functions 
o Duty to participate in preparation of JSNA for local authority area 

(equal duty of all partners) 
o Duty to participate in preparation of JHWS for local authority area 

c. Other associated functions 
o Duty to have regard for JSNA and JHWS in exercise of relevant 

commissioning functions 
 
5. Local Healthwatch 
a. Establishment of H&WB Board 

o Duty to send representative to H&WB Board 
b. Functions of H&WB Board 

o Duty to provide information when requested by H&WB Board to enable 
or assist its functions 

c. Ensuring alignment of commissioning plans 
o Duty to get a view on how well the CCG has contributed to the delivery 

of the JHWS as part of annual performance assessment of CCG.  

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



�
�
�
�
�

�
����������	�


�����������

	�����	���������

�

��������
����

��

� �
�
�
�������	
��	���������
�������	�����	�������������
����������������������
�

Agenda Item 8

Page 19



�
���������	�
��
���� �� ������
������

����������	�
�����������	�����	���������
���������������


��������	�������������

�����������������������
��
���
���������������
���
������	������	����
�� �
����
�!��

"�����
��������������������������	��	���������������������#����
#�
���������
����	���
����#�		����$��
�� �
����
�!�

�����
��
��
����#�������
��������
����
������
���
������	������	��������	�
��
��%�

�&����������
�
������������'���
��������������
�����$�!�

���������������������������������	�����	�������������������������������� �����
�����������!�� �"�����������#�����������$��������%������������������&�

�� '����������������������������	�����	��������(�
�� )�������������������������������������������������������������*�����

	�����������������(�
�� )����	�����������������������������������������������*������������%�+

��������������������(�

"��������
�
�������
����#������
��������
����
���������	�
��
�����������#�����������
���������������$�(�������������������#�$��
���������������
����	��$��������
���������������������		����	�������
�
$�����������
������
$��$�����������	�����$�!�

�����	��������	��������)�*������+�
���$������	�������
��������������
�
��	�����������
,��������	�����$�
	������������		������$�������#������	�����
�������
���
����!�-���
��
�	������������$�
�����	�����$��������$�������������
������������	��	�$��
�����!�
"���������%��
���������������	�������������
����
����	��	����	���
����$�	��	�
����$�!������������������	��	�������	�����������������
�������
����
$��$����
��
	�
$����+��
�����#������
���
������������������������
���
��������������
�
���
�!�

��
�$�����		����������$�����	������	������.����$����.���	��	�$��
����������
���
��
������������/�
�����������+!�

-��������������������������$�%��������������������������#����
���������������	�����
#�����
�	�������������������$���	��$
����		���
�����������������!�

����������������$�%���������$�	�����
�
���������'�����
�������#���	���
�	���%�

����#��
$
����������������	��
	������������	��#��
���
����
��������������	����!�

����������	�
��
�����������

��������������'�!�

"������������������������
��
��������������	����
������
��������
�������)����!��"���
�
����������������������� �	����	�������	������������#����	�������-�		����$���
�����
�������������
�
�����!�"��������
��
����	���
���	�������%��
�������������������#����
��$��$(����
���������������������%������$����
�����������	���!��

"����������/����������
�����
����	�%�������!�

�
!�0�������1�-�		����
��
���
������	������	����
�� �
����
��
������
�����!�

���������������������������������������� ����
������������	�
����������������������	��������������������������

Page 20



�
���������	�
��
���� 2� ������
������

,��������
�
,������� -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- .�

,�������/�+�����������������,������---------------------------------------------------------------- 0�

,�������1�+�2���#��������,�����	������*�����------------------------------------------------------- 3�

,�������.�+�4����������&��*���������,�����������*��� ---------------------------------- 15�

,�������0�+������������������	�������� ----------------------------------------------------------------- 1.�

,�������6�+������&�)���7��8����
�����(----------------------------------------------------------- 19�

,�������:�+�;��������<������������---------------------------------------------------------------------- .1�

�

Page 21



�
���������	�
��
���� 3� ������
������

,�������/�+�����������������,������-�

'������������
�����
��������
���
���
������	������	��������	�
��
����������$�	�$���������
���		��$������������
�������������$
#��$������
������
�
������	��
����	��
���� �
����
�!�"��������	�����$������	�$�	���������$�����	����
�����
�����$�������	��
��������)����%�������
������	����
��������������		��$����
�����$���$���
��������
�����������������	��
����	��������������������$��$�� ������������������
���
�
�����	�����
�����!�

)����������������������������� ������������������������������
������������,������(�

�� ���������
���	��
����	������ �
����
�������������$
#����� ������!��
�� ����$
#���������������
������	���$���4�5�����
�$�	�����	����#��������

6�$	�������
�$�%���������������������������������
��������
����������������
	������������������������	����
����������������������	
�������������	���������
����������� !����	���������������	���"���

����������������������������
������

"�#����	���$	
�����������������	����
�������������������������������%��

�� �����������������	��
����	������������	������	����������������
����%�
#�������������������
��������������
���������	�����
���������
���
���$!�

�� ������������
��$��
�	��
����	�����
��������
'��	��#�����$�%�
����$���������
	�������
������������	���!����������
����
��������	�����
����������	���
�!�
����������#�������$�
����!�

�� �	��
����	��
�$��	�������������� ��������	� ��	��
��$������
���������	��
�
��������
����������	�������������������������������������������������
������	����������
����	�$���������	�!�����#�$���
���������
���������

�7��
���������������������!�

�� ������
�����$������
������	���
����$�$��������
��$��
��	��
	���
����������

�	�����������������
���	�����
�����
���	�!�1���������������	���
��
�	��
	��������	���!�-���
�����������������������
�����%�
�	�����������
�	�����
�!�+���
��������	����
�
������
�����������
���#
'�#�������'���
�	�����
��$������	�������������������!�

�� ���������		��$����
���������������#�	�����
�������!������
����������#��
�
���������������������
����	�����������������
���������������
������������
���	������	��
	���������
��������	���
��
�!�

�� ���
���
��#������
����������
���

�	���
�	��
����	������		���
�����������+�
��������	���
���������!�������	��'���������
��������#�

�������
���
�
�������$����!���

�� �����������
�������
������	��
	�����	�����	����$����
�
�	��
���������
��������$��������
�����
�!�

�� ���
�������$
#��$������
������	��#��������������������)�����#��
�7��
��
�����������#����
$��$��
��������!�

Page 22



�
���������	�
��
���� �� ������
������

<�������-�
�����		#��$����
�����		�����#�	����
�!��8�$�
������#�����������
������	���$���
4�5�
����$�������������
�!��������������
����� ��
�����������������
�����#������
� �
����
�%�#����-���������$�����$
����������
�������������)������
���	#�����
���!��
���������
������������������
�		�
������$
#������/�������������������	����
�$�!�
�

;������/�+�
��=����������������+�>�����$���	�����������������������+����������������������
���%���	����155?���������������?6������������*���

�
�

;������1�+�������������	���������������%������%�����������	�������������������������%����
��������������-�

������������,������������������*�����@�����,�������>���������������������	�

��������$�155.+50

�

���

�%���

�%���

�%���

�%���

2%���

2%���

3%���

3%���

�%���

�		�9�
��� �&3 �&�� �:&33 3�&:3 :�&;3 ;�&43 4�5

6 �������
��<=>

�
�

��������������
������
���������	���
����������������� �
���
����
����?��	�
����
�������$���!��8
�� ���	�%��������
�$���$��������
�������
��$�����
������
�������@������4:������������
�$���$��������
������
���$�����
�����'�$�����43!�
)���
���#��������
����$�����
�:�%�����
����$�����
�4�����2!���������
��
	�'�	����
�7��
������#���
�����'�$������3��������
��	�'�	����
�7��
������
������

Page 23



�
���������	�
��
���� :� ������
������

�	�������!������
�����
�A�����3��������
��	�'�	�������������
�����'�$��������
�������
��	�'�	�������������
�����!�������������
������
�
������	��
����	��
����������	�����$
#�%������
����
�������	�����������	���
�����������#�#������
���$�����$��#�		����
����!������	���	����������#
'��$����
������%���
����	�
	��
#����������+!�

'��A����������������,������A�������
��������	�����	��������(�
�

�����������	���� !� "#�
�

!$�������$�������������������������������	������%�����������$���������������	��$���
������#����%��������$�������$����������������������������������	������$���������
������������������	������	���%����		���%���#�
�

����
�������
������������������$��	��
�
��		���������!������������
�����	������
�

�������$���
�!��������
�(�
�

�!� �
�������$���������#��
�������	�������������	���������%���������$����
��
���������'�������������������������!�

�!� 1��������$�����������������������������������$����!$!���
�$����
	��
����������
$
����������� ��
�������������
�����!�

2!� �����$������$	����������
������
�
����������$�	����
���� �
����
�.�����	���
����
�����������	����������$���������)���������
��
	���	�$����<� �
���������
�	��
������������
�������� �	�������
$���>!�

3!� 8�����$��	������#������
�������	�����������	���
��������$�������#�
����
���$	����
����!�

�!� -
'��$���������$	���#�����������	�������		����$��!�
:!� )
�����$��������.�	#.�����
�������
���
����������
�$���
�������&���&

��
������������
�����	������!�
;!� 9�	�����$�.���
����.���
�������
�������������������������������������

��/
����#����.������	���.���
�������
������#����
�
�
��������������
����������$�������������	������
��������	������	������#����$
������
�!�

4!� 9�	�����$���
������#������
��.�	��
������.�#��	����	���
��$����
�%���$��
7��	������
�����!�

A!� )���������$���
����������$���$�������������������������������%�����
��������������������	���
����� �	�����
���	��!�

��!�?'��$�����		�$���	�����#��
���
�B686BB�?+��
��������
�������
��������
.������.��������
�����
������$������#������
�����������
�!��������������
��
���
�����������������������������	�����
��%���������	������		���������

���

�	�!�����������	����

�� +�	��
���

�	������������	������C6�
���,��!�
�� ,��
���

�	��������	�����!�
�� B���

�	���
�����������������	�����������	�����!�
�� B���

�	���
���������	������������
�<����
����	�
�#

�����

� �
����
�>!�
�� B���

�	���������	���������
�����	���
�!�

<�9�	'��$����
���

�	��������#&��$����#
�%���������������
���	����	�����
�	���	��
���	������������
���������
���

�	��#��
��7��	������������#�����$>!�

��!�-
'��$������
���
�����#�����
�������
����
������
�!�
��!�)�
��$��
�� �
����
�.����
�
����������
���$��	�����
�!�

Page 24



�
���������	�
��
���� ;� ������
������

�2!�-
'��$�#����	��
����	������������
���
����������
�#��������#��
���
�#��
�������
�������!��

�3!�8������$�����$��7��	�������&�&	������
�!�
��!�)
�����$����	���������#���������������������
�#�������
�#��
���
������

��	��������	���!�
�:!�"���������$���������$��������
����������
�
$����������������'��D����/����

������+��������	������	���
�!��"������	�'���
����
�%������$%�������
������

��������
����������
����$�������
��%��
���
����	!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;�����������������(�
"�������
�(�
�� ��������������#�#�		&
��$�������������$����
�������
�����!��
�� � �
����
�����������$���
$
�������
��$�����$���������		��$����
	���!�
�� ��
���
�����#
'��$������
�$�������
������������������������������	���	��

���
������!��-�������������
�����������
��$������������
���
���
�$��������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9�
��!�

�� �������
��������$����
���
��
���
�
�������	�������
��$�������������
��
�����������#�	�������
��������
���
������������������	���	���������������������
��
�
�.��
��'�!������#
'��������������
���
���
��$������!�

�� �
�������������
����������������
�����$���
������<�!$!�������#��#�	���
�����$�
�
$
����>��������������������
������<�!$!�.�	��/���.>�������������
�
��#�		!�

�� ������
�������	��#�����������������	�����
���$�������	�������������������$
���
#����
��������'��������
#�
�!���������������������������!�

�

�#���
(�
�

�� -�����������������������
����
����
�	����		��$���#������
����
��������#���
6�$	���.�����	�����������	���
������������������!��������.��	���B��
�.�
��$�	�$����%��������������	������

������	���	������.�
��&������&����&�&��	���
�.���+�
�������#����������	���
���������#��������$���&'������������&������$�����
��
���	����
���
�!������������#������	������
���
�$$	���������$��������
����
���	�����������
$���
��������	��������������������	��
������
��
�����!��

�� �������������������	�/����#
'��
�	��
����	����������		�������������
�.�$���$�
+��������		�.���
���$�%���������������#��'����������	�����$����������������
���
����
���	������
����#
'��
#�
�!�����������������
��������!�

�� -��������	����������������������$
����������������������
���
�	�������
�
� �
����
���
�������
����	��
����	���
��		����	�������
�
$���������!�-������
�����#����������������������
������������
�����'��������
���
$
���!������
������������/
��
�
�����
�������#����	�������-�		����$�9�
�!���

�� -���������������
�'������
�$�����	�������������)��������#����.����
����,���
�	�
������	.���
�������
�������/
��������.+�����	��������+���
&������	���.���
�������
�
������#!�"�������$
������������������
������		��
��#����������	�����
�
�
����%����������������
��#&��$����#
�!�9�������#�������	�������������
����������	�����������%�#���������	'���
���		�����
���

�	�
������
�����
����	������������
��		���#������������� �����
*������!��-�������������
��
����
�$�����	��������#������$��7��	������
���������
����	���!��

Page 25



�
���������	�
��
���� 4� ������
������

����������������
/-�����������
����������	�����������������)�������2�����
9��1�
��������� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	�������	�������
�������������$
������������		������$��������'���
#�
���
������	�#
'������#�		���'��
�������������		���������������!��+��������		���������$
������	�(�

�� 9��	���������	������	���
�������	�����	�����������$�,
���
��
������������
#
'��$��$����
�#������+��
����
��
����%����
���
������
����
������
�	����
������
%����	���
��
������������������
�
�!�

�� �$
����	��
������������
��������
�������
$�����
�����%����2��������3�
#�����������$����
��������
������		�
$���E��������������$	����
�����!�

�� +����	��
�	��	��
�/���
�����
�����������������
��������
�
������
��
$���!����
�
�������$���������������	���������
�������
��
�������	��	��
��
�$���������	�������-�		����$�9�
�!�

�� 6���
��������	�����
���
���������

�����
���
�
�����!�
�� ����#
'��
$
������	�����	������������������$����
������	���
������

#�����#�		(�
�� �
�����������������	��
����	����
�$����
�����$�����������E�����

�
$
����<�!$!���
�����$��
$
��������������9#�	���
�����$����	���
����'�����������	��/���>!�

�� ���
��������������
�����
�
�����
�����	����������
�!�
�� ������
�������������������������������������#���
��������������
�

	��
����	�!�
�� ������
�����������
�����������		�
���

�	�
�����#�		����	'������

�����������		��������������'��!�
�� ����
�������	��$������������	�������
��������E���#��	��7��	�������'����

��$������������$�
����
���	������
�����
������
���
��
������!�
�� ��
��$�����������
���	�����
��$��������
	���������	���&�&������	����


���

�	���
�	��
����	���������7��	���������	�������$���������!�
�� ��#������
�����������������������������	�
����������
�����������

���������������
���$����������	�$&��
����
�����������E��!�
�� ����
��$�����&�&	������
��������$��7��	������
���
����	��#����

��������!�
�

1-�����������
����������	���������	���������,������,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �
����
�.��)	�����	�)���������$�,
������	�������		����$�$���
���/�����	�����$���
�$���������	�������-�		����$�9�
���
����
���$�������
����
	��
����	������ �
����
�%��������	���	�����$���
�	�
����#���������
����������
��	�&
���

�	�%�,��
���

�	����������	�����������	�����
���

�	���
�� �
����
�.��
���	����!�
�

.-� ����	����������
�����'�*�*������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	������
��������������	���
"��	�������9�
�������		����$�$���#����	��
����	����
�������)�����������������
�������������
������
����#����
���	�����������	�����$��
����!�
�

0-� ������������������
����
9��+�������
������� �
����
�.��0�������	������
���#�����+�
������)��������
���	����
�����E���������	�������-�		����$�9�
�.���

��$��������
���
����	��
�
���	���������	��� ������������	������
�����E�������
�����	���������������������
�������
�����������������!�

Page 26



�
���������	�
��
���� A� ������
������

,�������1�+�2���#��������,�����	������*������

'������������
�
�����������	�
��
�����������������������
�������
����$��������
������		�

$������������.9
��'��$�����)��	�������
������.!��
-������#��������������F�-��������������������)��������
���
����
�	�����	�����		�
�����
���#�
���#��
������	�����������$�������
�
�	�������������
���������
�#���
��$���
�������$���
����!��
������
��
����������#��������������
����
�
��������
���
�	�������
�����9����
������� �
������	�
$�
���
'����#��!�
�

����������$�����������$
���������
$��������������������
������
����������
��$�����$������
�&�����������������������
���!�������
�		��/������������������
	���	&���������
�����
�������)�����#��
�������	�!�
�

����7��������
����%�A��������������������$������*��%����*�����A-�
�

�����������
���������������#�
������7������!�
�

!$���&������	����	�%�����������������������'��(��������	������������	��$��
���	������	�����$������������	����	���������������	����	�$����$��������������
����#�
'�����������	����%������������������	������	������������������	�)����%���������
�$����	
�������$������������$��	�������������������������������������*��$��������
�������������	#�

)����������������������������� ��������������������������2���#��������
������	������*�����(�
�������������#����������	��	�������0����+�
���$��������������������������$��������
��	'��$��
���!��G����������
���
������������������������������#�����(�

'���������/�+�,����
�*�����
����)����.��)��	�����
���+�
���$����#����������� �
����
�����
���
����%::��
���	�
���	����$�������
��%�#���������	������H����		����	�
���������������!�<���
������
�����������	����$�����������	��#����:�H�	����������������
�$�������	��������>!���
����� ��
�����������
���������/���������	��'�������%���*�������	�������������
�
���$����	��&������$���
�����
���������$������	��	�#
'��������������������
�		#��I���
��J!�"�*��#���*�������
�	���%����#���*�������
����'�������K!�
�

8�
��������������	�
���	����$�������
���	��������
��#�����������)�����������������
	�������
�
�	��
���!�<��%2����������)���%�9����
������	�
$�
���
'����#�������2%23�����

�
�	��
���>!���������	#�����
���������������	����
�$�%�������
����������#����
��
�����������������		������
�����	���
����������
�!���

�� �������������	����!1.B"��	��������������	����,����!6?55��������"�����
�*���������*����-��

�� ����%����������	���$��������2��������������������������������������
%�����16B����>������	����*����	��������*����$�����������2�������
�������$�2������C��������$�2��#�����D���$�,��	��$�,������$�,�%���
4����$�'		���;����$�D��������$�D�������$� ����	����2���#$���������C�
'		��$����������,�������-�

���������������������������������������� ����
��"�����������%��������
�$��������������1������#����������������	��������
��$�����		������	���������

Page 27



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

������������
���#���	��
	�������
����#��
���
�������������������������������
�
��'��������	�������
������!�

'���������1�+�8�����
����� ������>��������$�>���������������������
������
�������������	��������
�����
�		�	�������������
��
����$����	�!�9���$����
��������%����	�����������
�����$���	������
��������$����	��#���������'�		��
�����������������������������	�������
������!�������
�		������
����
�������
)������������
�������������A��		#��$��������������%��������	��
�	'�#������
������������#��#��
��������/
��
�	����	��!�9����
�%�����		������������$���
�
������� �
���������������������$��
���
�����$�������$����	��#���
��������
��������%����	������
��
�����$�������	��#��
���������)����!��B��������������
����9����
���
�������	���	�����#��
��
������
�����		����
�����$!���
�

�!AH����$����	������ �
����
���$����:&�4�#�
���	�������������66���������&��!��
�����#�����$��
����������+����6�������
�$�����!3H��
������������
�������	#�
�
���������6�$	�������
�$�%�#�����#���
��
�������;!2H������������������!�
�

;������.�+�
�����������	�8�����
����� ������>��������$�>���������������������


�����������	�����������������������������$��������������������������15/5+/$�����������!��������������	������������	������
E������"

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

9�
��
�

�

9�
��
���

@G
��	
��$
��

-
���
��
@6
��
��
��
@-

��
�
�'

)�

��

�
�@
9�

�

�
@)
���
���
$��



��

��
��
�

��
��
�@-

��	
��$
��

��
��$
�
�@9

�

���
���
	�

��
�	�
�@+

�
���
$�)

�
�
�@
-

��
��

@-
�		
��$
�

�

-
��
��
$�
@8
�

��$
�
�@,



��

��
��
��$
��

@-
��
��	
��

)
#	
��
@"��
	��
�<"
+"
+>

�

��
��
 �

�
@)
��
�

@9
�
	��

� 
�

��
+
���
�6
��
�

������

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
�
��

0��&��

+��&��

���&��

1�
&��

�

'���������.�+�F���������������2���	���,�������-�
9���$����
�$�	�
�#
'���	������������	����������	���������
�������
�	����������������
����	������
��'��������	�������
������!������
���������	���	�����$�0��+��'�
��
�		#�����<0+�>����6�$	����������������	����$��	#	���������������'������
�	����A%�
�����������������	���		��������
��$�����&�������������		�������
�&
��������	���	�!��
���������
������	���	�����$������	������������������� �
����
������	�
$�	��
��


���������	��
�������
�$������
�������%����%�����'��		�%������	#����
��������
#�		���	#�����6�$	�������
�$�!��
�

��%�*��$�������������	��������������*���������������	���������������
������#������%�����!���"�%���������%�����*��>�������*������$�
�������������������	�����,��������2������-�
�

Page 28



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

8
�� ���	�%��!AH������	����#
'��$��$�����9	��'��
��?�����
���	�����$�0��
+��'�
���		#����%�3!:H�����
�����	��9
'�����3!4H����9����
��B�����%�
����
���#�������� �
����
��
�������!4H��������6�$	����
������2!;H�<��$�
���
�
��������
�-
'������������%���
�	�����>!�

'���������0�+�>���������������������
;������0�+�@,�>������������

����������	
�	�����	��������	�	��	�	�	�����	��������	���������	��	 
������

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
�

�
��
���
���
��
��
��
��

 �
���
���
��
��
��
��
���
� !
""
��
�#

$
��
��

%�
��
�
��
��
��&

!�
��
���

%�
���
���
'�
��
��
� �
(
(
��
��&

��
��
���
��&
���
)))

*��
���
�+
� �
,�
��

#�
��!
�-
.��
��
�� 
�(
��
���
��
���
�

-.
��
��
�'�
��
!�/
��
�

0!
�(
��
�&
��
��
��
��

&
��
��
��
��1
��
�
��
��
��2
��
3�

&
��
��
��/
��
�!
�(
��&

��
��
��
�4

 
������

��
��
��

��
��

���


���5

����

��������	�
����������������������������
�����������������

�
�

"����������������
������$����	����������$����	�������,)+6��#����$
��������L&)�
���	����$�6�$	��������1���������
���������	�����		��
����������)��������������A!�
�����	��� �������#�������"��	��@)#	���	��	�������� �
��#�����#�		������
������� ��
���
*�������	�
��
�!�������������������		��#�������		����	�����������#�������		���		�
�$������������	��
����!���
�

����������
����#�%����
���
�����		����
'������
���������#���������
�����
����������
�����!�������������
���������
���� �
�@)���
@9�	����
���
��������#�������
��$��������������	����#������+����6����� �
���
���#��������
������#�
�����
9	��'��
��?���%�B�����		�����"��	��%�?���	��
�������
�����	��9
'!���
�

���
���
���	������
�������$����7��	���������������������
���������������$
��!�
�������
����#�������$�
����#�������#�������
���	����
��	��'%������������� ���
����������	�
���#�
����$��������	���
�
����������
�#����������
��
��!�

Page 29



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

;������6�+�@,�>���������������>���������������

!	�
�
��	���������	�	����	����	����"����	��	������	���#��
��

��

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

&!�� 6.�� ���� ����4  !����

������	$��#��
��

! ���


���5

����

��������	�
������ ������������������������������������������

�

'���������6�+���������
���������
"����
���������.���	�������
������.%������$���
�$������������������		��$��������
��������&�����
���
�����		����7��	��������
�������)����%�������������������������
���%����������*������*����������������������,������*��	�������������*�������
����6������-��������������/
��������!�
�

���
�		������ �
����
������
��4����������
�����������
�����$%��
��	�����	����#����

��������6�$	���!�� �
����
�����������;���.����.�
������
��		�?��	�����
�������������
)���
�����������?��	�����
������#����	#�
�
������������������		�
�����
���������
	��������
���#������#��
���������
������!�
�

8
�� �
����
�������$���
�$������
��������������	�����
�	�����������
��������	�
����������$�������
�	�������������
����	�
��%����$����	����������	���!������
����
���������	�������#���������	�������������?���������%�����%����
���������������������M���������
������������������#�
���#�����
�������:��
������������
����
���
��%��������	����$�����&�;����
�)������������������
�
����
�%���������	��������
�����������'�����������������#�������$������������
�
�	��(�����4���

���������������
���#�������	�������
������4��������
����
��
����!������4���

��������������	������#�
������� �
�%������9����
��<������$����>�
��������������-���������������!������#�
���#����������$�����
������
�(�

�� ,
�����
������)���	��<������$����>%�9����
��
�� �
�����	��9
'%�� �
�!�
�� +�!�1�
�.�%�� �
�!�
�� "��	���8��	��%�� �
�!�
�� 9�
�������+�����		��� �
�!�
�� 9	��'��
��?���%�� �
�!�
�� ��������
'%�+����� �
����
�!�
�� -������)���
�	%�-����� �
����
�!�

Page 30



�
���������	�
��
���� �2� ������
������

'���������:�+�,������
���
�		��
����
���������		�����
�������� �
����
���������������		���
�$��������&��!��
�������	������
����
�����
��
�����������)�������		����3H��������&���#������	����
�
�������		��$������H%�)
�����	�����$�����A!3H�������
$	�
������2H!���
���������
����
����������$�������������
�������)����!�����$
������������
���
�
��������
����� �
��)���%����$���
����
��������
��������������		��$����
�
�
������	����$��
�
���������������������
���
��������������!�����	���
��
�
���������
���
���
���	��������������������
��#��	������������������������
$	�
��
��������������	������
���
��������
��!���������
����	��	��
������$�
���
��$�	�$�����
����
�����#������
����$��
����������������	����
�$��������	�������	#!��
�

;������:�+�D����,�����	�������15/5G15//����%�����		����������/$555�������������������-��
������%����������������������������������*���������������������������

� �H;����
,'�8�

���,� )��,� ��D>� ,�>�)>DD� >������
��>��@>�

9�
$	�
�� 3-9� ;!:� �!�� 3!3� �!3� A!:�

)
�����	�����$�� /6-0� A!;� A!�� ;!A� ��!;� ��!;�

�
�$��������� :-:� �!�� �!�� 2!�� 2!�� 3!��
8
��������
�
$�
�� 6-1� 0-1� �!�� �!�� 0-9� �!;�

����������$������
�����	��� ;!;� �!�� 2!3� 2!�� 3!�� 4!��

����
��������� /-9� �!:� �!�� �!3� �!A� �!��
����
�������
�������� 03-9� �3!�� ��!4� ��!�� �4!�� �A!2�

B���
�� /-9� �!�� �!�� �!�� �!3� �!3�

+� ��	��������� /-6� �!;� �!:� �!;� �!A� �!��
N�	������$������
������
��� 1.-5� A!�� A!;� A!�� �3!4� �3!4�

���������	��������������������������������		����������	�����
�������6�$	��������-�	������#������������������

'���������9�+�'������	�4�����������*������!'4�"�
����"��� ���1�	���	�����
���������������������������
����������
��<������������
���������
���������������$����	�
������� ����������>%������������
���
��$����
������%�����	����������$�������%����������$	�����
���������
���
���������		�
�
���<��		���?#�
�+���
���������
����D�?+��>����6�$	���!�������		#��������
���
�����
��'���
�	����������������
����
���$�������
�	���	������
������!��

Page 31



�
���������	�
��
���� �3� ������
������

�
;������9�+�4������%����'������	�4�����������*������15/5�������������!D���"�

�
�

Page 32



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

���������"1����
�������
����������$���
�	�� �
����
����%��
����%�������	�����
�	������	���!��2�3������3�3����		��
�����
��������������H����������	������	�����
#������6�$	���!���#���
%����	��
�� ��������%�����������	������
��������������$��
�������������		��
������
�����!��
�����	��9
'�����������		��
������ �
��#��������
�����������
����%������� ���;����		��
����#������
���������
������		���		�#������
� �
��)���%�9����
������������		��
���������$��!�

'���������?�+�>���������������������	������������*������
�������
����	#���#��������
�������
�������������������������������������
��
����������A!����
8
������������������������	����������	������#��������
��������������H�����
����		�����
�����#�
�����������
�$���������	������#��������
����������H�����
���	�����#�
��!�
�������
����#���	��
	������(�

�� ������
������������		�����
�����#�
����
����$��
���
���������
����������
���	������
����<�!�!�������������������$���������$�
��$���
����$��
>!�

�� ����������
����	�
	������
�����������������������������������&���
��	��
��
���������<�!$!��
��
�����
����������<)��>�������
'�����������
>!��

�

;������?�+�,���������4����������������������*��������		�����%�����

������������������������������������	�������������*�����������������*���E�������
������������	���������+�1556+3���������������

�

��

���

���

���

���

)
�
�

�	
��


��
��

��
��

�

)
�
�

+
�

'

�

�
		�
)
��

��

�
�

?�
�$

��
��

��



9

�
��

���
��

��



B
��

��

�
�

�
��
��
��

�
��

��
�

��

)
�
�
�
�

�
�$
��

���
��
��

��
��

1
��

��
	�C

��
��

��
�


�
	

�
�

�

��
��
��
��

,
��

��
�

��
�

�

��
��
��

6
 �
�

��

	��
��

��
�

"�
��
��
�
��

�C
��


�
��
���
��
��
��

��

�
��
�

�

,������	������

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��

1������
�����7�����	��$
��

?��������
�����7�����	��$
��

�

'���������3�+�2������;�������D�*���
9
����������$�$��������	�
������������������
�����	���!��������
�����$��������
��
�
����������$���
���� �
����
�������$��<;AH>�����
���#����������	�	���	��<;3H>%�
����������$��
���	�!���#���
%����
���
�����7��	��������
���� �
����
��#��������		�
����
�������$����
�������������
����	�
��!��"�����A%��
������� �
������9����
��
#�
���������������������$���$��������	��	#�
��
����������$�
��������������
������
� �
����
�!�������������������
����
�����#���������%�#
'��$������$���
�	�
�
����������
���$��������	������#���������
��������'�!�������
��������#�
��
9	��'��
��?�������	���)���
��&�� �
�%����������$������	���)���
���&�� �
�%�
-���
����+�
$�
��&�9����
�%�����
���8��
�&�9����
�%�-����9�
�+�
$�
��D�9����
��

Page 33



�
���������	�
��
���� �:� ������
������

���������
���
�����	���)���
��&�9����
�!��������
�����#�������$����������
��
����
����������$����
�������������������
������
������	���	������������������$�
��
��$�������
���#��'����	�����
�

8�$�
��A���#����������� ������%��
����������$����
��������������$�����!�������#�
���	�������#��
����������$�
������
�����#�	���������
�����	�����#����
�!������
������#�	�������#��
����������$�
������
������
������������ �
������9����
��
��
���$������
����#��������	#����
����!���������#������%�#��	����������������
�$��
���������������%������ �
������
�����
�����������������
������
�����������
����

�������
���������
����������3���
�����$�������!������������$��
���	�!�
�
;������3�+�2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�$�	���1553G/5�����15/5G//�

2�����	����������������%��������������?�%��#�

2�!��H

3�!��H

��!��H

:�!��H

;�!��H

4�!��H

A�!��H

�"�������� �8�����$�����
���
��9�
���N�����<�������> �:&4#��'�

����������	�����������������������	���	��

B
��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�	
��
�
��
�

� �
����
�����A@��

� �
����
������@��

9
����������$���������������
���
$
����
���A@��

9
����������$���������������
���
$
����
����@��

�

'���������/5�+������������,�������
9���$�������������	�����������
����	������������'������
�$����	���%���������
�������������������
�����
��<����������
�3%����������������������>!�"�������������
�
#��	'�����������
�����������	�
�����������
������
���������)������������
'�
��
�
#��
���
����
�������������������
��'��������	�������
������!�
"��� �
����
��#�������
�����������
���		��������	���	�
�������#��$��(�
��������
���
�<�
�����$��3����>��������
�:�<�
�����$���������>!�
8�$�
�����������������
��	���	��������������#������������
�����#������� �
����
��
����#��������������	����
�$�!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��
�����	�
���
�����
��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

���
����
����
�����
��
�
������
����
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���
	�
��������
���������	
��
�����	�
��
���	��
�	
��
�����
��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������
����
��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�
�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�������
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��
�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��
���
���
����
��
���	��
�

Page 34



�
���������	�
��
���� �;� ������
������

"��
�����������
%��		�����
������
����	#�����������	����
�$�!�����)������������
��$�����
����%��		#������)��
#�		�����-����� �
����
�!�<������
����$����$�
���
�
���4@A����-����� �
����
������	������
����	��������
���%��������������
��
���$�
�


>!�
9�����
�:��#���
����������
������$��%�#����� �
��)������$��������	����$��
����������
������	����
�$��#�����	�����������<�	������H>����	�
��������#�����������
�
����
��������
���	��	#�
����������������	����
�$��$
������
���������3&��H�
�������
'!�
�

;������/5�+��������������������������������������8����155:����1553�!���������8����"-��
>�����$���	�����������������������%��������	���������

3!�

�!�

:!�

;!�

4!�

A!�

��!�

��!�

��!�

�2!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �
����
� )��
# �		 � �
��)��� +����� �
����
� N�	����-������
�� -����� �
����
�
<��

6�$	���

� �
��)���

-��)

)��
#�		

� �
����
�

+��)

N�	��-������
��

�
�

;������//�+�����������������8����:���������155:����1553�!���������8����"-��>�����$�
��	�����������������������%��������	���������

��!�

��!�

�3!�

�:!�

�4!�

��!�

��!�

���:@�; ���;@�4 ���4@�A ���A@��

8���



��
��
�
��
�
�

6�$	��� � �
����
� )��
# �		 � �
��)��� +����� �
����
� N�	����-������
�� -����� �
����
�

<��

� �
��)���

6�$	���

� �
����
�

)��
#�		

N�	��-������
��

-��)

+��)

�

Page 35



�
���������	�
��
���� �4� ������
������

'��2���#��������,�����	������*������������
��������	�����	��������(�

+	&������	��������#�
�

���������������7�������������������������
���	7����	�(&��
2���#��������������	������*����������$����=������+�������������������
	��������	��������-�
�

�������������*���$���������������������������������������������
������������������������������������������������-�
�

-�����>�
��$��������������		��$����
����������3����
������#�����>���$�����
��'���������
�������������������$
����������
#�
�%������������	��
���������
���#�		������
������������������
�����������������������#���
���������������
�	��!�
�

�������������		���
#��	���$	����������������������		������������$�����
�����
� �
��)��������9����
����������7����	�%���������#��
������������
������������
	��!��+�����#�������
��$������������������������/
��
�	�����������)����%�
�
�����$�#
'�������$��!�"���������	������������$
����������
����
��
���#������
�!�
�

-���������$������������
���	���#����#��������(�
�� ��#��������		�����������������������������	������������������
�$����
����

�����������������
�� ��+����������������������	����������*���������������������$�������	�$��	��

�������������������
������
�������������������$���$������&�	��%���
��
��
�������������!�+����&�	����������������
���	#������
��
��������������������
#��������������
������
��
����
�%���������������	�����������������#����#
�!�

�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�������������(�
2���#��������������	������*�����������%�������������������=������#����D����
�������������� ��������������	��������-�������������/
������������������		�

$�������������	����'���
������
�����!������	�
�����������������?��	��
���
�$
�������
�#�
��$
�������������������
��#�����������������������������	�����!�
"��
�������#�������������������#�#������#
'��$��������
��$�����������

��$�����%������
����	�
(�

�� ��������	������
��������
/����#�����������
$�������	���������������������	����
#������������������

�� -
'�����
$������	��#�����
����������	������������
�� B�����������������$�������������������I�����K��
����
�� 8�#�
����$����	�������#�	��������6�������%�6��	�����������
�����$�

<�66�>�
�� 0��)	����	��'��$�#����	��	����	��
�������
���
����������
�� ���
�����������%�����
������������	�����
��$���
����������
����$����	�!�
�� 9�������������������	��	���
��)���E�����������9�
���������
�����,��

�
�����������9����
�����#�		����� �
��
�� 8�
���
�?��	��
����$
�������
�#�
��������$�����$����������	��	���
��'�		��

����	�������������
���$����	����	���!�
�

�#���
�����#����#
����
�������
��������!��������������
�����������
������
������������$�����������	��	���%�����
$���������	�����$�!��

Page 36



�
���������	�
��
���� �A� ������
������

���������
�����$����		��$������� �
����
���
���(�
�� 6���
�������������#�� �
����
��)	�����	�)���������$�,
��������		��

����
�������9
��'��$�����)��	�������
�������������	�����������������
�
	��	������
����
��#�		�����	�����������������������
�����������)�����#����
����������
����!�

�� 6���
�������.9
��'��$�����)��	�������
������.�������������������
�������	��
��/
��	��'����	������
����		�
$�������������� �
����
�������
���
�����
��
����
����
��
����#�������
���#��!���������	�����
�
��������
���	����������������)��	�����
���+�
���$�!��"��#�		��������	��
��������	�������
-�		����$�9�
��������������������������/
��
�
�����������#�		��	���������	�
�
�����)��������+��������
���
�������������?��	�6���
�
������
���
�������
�	�������
���
����	�!�

����������������
/-�������������
��������	�����������������)�������������
9��1�
���������������	�������-�		&9���$�9�
�����	��������������9
��'��$�����
)��	�������
��������������/
��
�
�����
��������	�������
��������)����!�
��)��	�
�������O��$����	�.��9�
�����	���������������������������������#
'�
������)��	�
��.���
�����������������������	��
��
��
�$�	�
	���������'�����
�����������
�������'�����
�
��������
$��������$��������#��
$
����������
�������
�!���������	�����	����������$����������	��	��
�/���
�����
�����%����2�����
���3!��������	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	��
�7��
�����
��������	������������
�	����#��
���
$
��������������
$��!��
�

1-�������������
��������	�����	���������,������,�������������@�����
9��1�
��������� �
����
�.��� �
����
��)	�����	�)���������$�,
������	�������
��		����$���&�����
���
����
$
��������#
'�����$�������
��'��������	����
���
����������� �
����
������
�����������������������	�������-�		����$�9�
�!��
�

.-�������������
��������	�������,�����������	����
���������������D����
>����������
�����������
9��0�������������)��������+��������
���
���������?��	�6���
�
������
���
�����
���	������������������������������������������#�		���
�������	�������
���
�����
9
��'��$�����)��	�������
������!�
�

Page 37



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

,�������.�+�4����������&��*���������,�����������*����
�

'������������������������������������*�������������������������������
����������������%����������>������*����*�����������	�������������
��	��������-�
8�
����
���$������	����	���#�����������	����.)����
�		�������.�&�����������	�$�
�����
����!���������		��$��#�		����������������������
���������
��$�����$�������	��	�����%�
�������		������������������
��������#
'������#�����
�$�����	��.���
���	�
��
����������!�
�������	�������	#���#��#�����������	���������
�#�!�

)����������������������������� ����������������!�� �"�����������
4����������(�
1����
��$�������������$������	����	�������#�		����$�����������	�!�-��F�9�������
�����	����	����������������	� �����$�&������������	� ���������������#�������	���
����	���
������������������������
����������!��"�����*����������������	�'����������!�
�

�����$����������%�����0+�����������
�������	�	�$������������/����&�
8
�� ���	�%�#��'�#�����(�

�� 1� ����� ������������
���������������������������	����
��
�&�������
��������������������
����2�%�������	������ �
����
�����������������<AH�
�����	��>!�"�����*�������	��������#�����
������	���	����
����$�
���		��$%�����#��
���'�#�������
�����	����������
����
���
���#�
�������$��
���������
�
�������������������!�

�� ?���	������/
������	��		�������	�'������E��
�����
��
�������,����
��
����	�������
�����
����$!�

�� � �
����
�.������������$�
�����#������
��������
��$�)�����	���	�����	����
#����������	����
�$�������
���#

���$���#�
���
���!�

�� B��������������������6��
$������������������
���	���
������	�&��
�������
�����
������������		���������	����
�����	����3����
�!�

�� ������	��������#����
	����$�����������	��#���������	����	����
�	�����
��
������$�	�������$�������!������������	�.������������1����	�"		�������
����
����.���#������(�

�� ������
�����$�������	���$
����$������P1����	��		������������		�����	�'��
�������
*����
�������
��;�H�����AA3����;;H��������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#�	��������
���	����	'��$������
�����
�
����	�������
����������
������	����	���
����
��::H�������A���;�H�
�������!�

�� ������
�����$�������$������#�	�����	������
���	����	'��$�������
�
���	��
����������
������	����	�����		���32H%�����
�������H����
����!�

Page 38



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

)����>*�����������������	����*���������*�����(�
����������������$�	��	��
�������	���������(�
�� ��������������
�����
������#�������	����$������	�����'�����#
'�����

��������������������	����$����������
��$�����%�������������
�������
���#�
����$���
��$������!�

�� 1����	����	�����
���������������$������������
���!��+�
�������
��
����������������
��������������
�������	!���

�� 1���������
���
�������
������	�����
���������������&��!$!��
��
�����		��$����$���
�	��
��������������
�������������.��	'��$����
�����.!�

�� ��������������$��������������
�����������������
�������	����#��������
������	������������
���$�!�

�� )�
�
���
����	��#���������	����	����
�	�����
������������$��
����#�	����
���
��������,�&
���

�����
�
���
��'�!�

�� 0����������
	������
���������
�������
����	�
�����������	����#�		���	��������
�����	$���	��
�	������
	������#�		���'���
���������
����������	�!�

'�������������
��������	�����	��������(�
��������-�������������������	��
%�����������������������		��	�������	��$��
����
��
�!������� ��
���������		��$������	����(�

�� 1���������$�#����#����������������#������$������$�
���
���!�
�� Q����$	��$�����#���#�������
���+���
������#����������.�����������
���	���

������.!�������
�������� ���������
���
�����
�������
���
�������������#
'��
������
��������	��		����JJ������	��		������#���
����������
�����	� �������

�����������$����'�$��������������	���
����!��"�������
���������#������#�		�
#
'�����	�!�

�� ����������/�������		������	����	�����
�������
��	����$
���������
��������
������	�.�����	���-������1����	����	��.�����������!��

�� ,��)��������
��#�		������'��$�����
���������+�����������$���		����
�
������ �����
�
��!�-��#�		��������'���������������
��������
��$������
����$�!�

�� ����	�$���
���������������
��������#�		���	��
���
�$�������
����������
�����	$���	����������&���������������7��	����������������
����������	�
����������$��� ��
��������$��
�	���	���������	�������������
���
�����!�

�� ����
�����	���
������� �
�����	�����+�8���������
���������#�� �������
���������������	����	����
�����
�������
�������	����������
�����$������	�
���	�����
�����!��������������������������������	��
%��������#�		�������
�������
'�����������
���!��

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;�����������������(�
,���
$
�����������������(�

�� 1����	����	�������#���
�	���������$������������/
�����
��&���������	�$�
�
�������)����
�		����
����!�

�� ���
���������������
�����������	��
����	�������������������
�����!�
�� �����
����������	�
$���	������$����
������	����	�����
������#�		���	����

.$	��.��$����
�������+�����?��	�����
�������������������$���
�����!�
�� 1
��������������������$���������
�
���
����	��#���������	����	���

�
�	���!�

Page 39



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

2F��
�� -���������
�$$	�������������
�������������������
����
������	����	���&�

�������������������

���	������$�#
���	���#�������������	�	���	!�

����������������
/-�����������
���������	������������
9��0���������� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	������
����������
��	��
��$
������
���$���������	�����
������	����	������� �
����
�!�"�����	������
��������		�
���������&$
�����
���	����$�����
���
�����������������$
�������
�������
����	�
��%�
���	�������	��
����	�!�
�

1-� ���������*��%�
�����2�������
9��0���������� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	������
�����������
�	������$�����
������	����	����
��
����#��������
��#
'��$����������	����
���	�����������	����	�������������$!�
�

.-� ����	��������������������
9��0���������� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	������
�������
������$��	������������
��������
�/���
�����
���$
�����
������	����	�����
������
���� �
����
�!�
�

0-�������������������
�����������
9��0����������������	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	������
��������������	���
"��	�������9�
�������		����$�$���#���������	����	�����
��������
��������
�
������
����������������������
#�
������
����#���
����		�����������	�����$��
����!�
�

6-�����������
��������	�����	���������,������,�������������@�����
9��0��������%�� �
����
��)	�����	�)���������$�,
������	��������$
������
��'��������
���
����
�����������������������$�����+������	����	�����
��������
�
�
���%�������������	��������$��������
�$���	����$�����		�
	�������
���$�����
���
��
���� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
�!�
�

Page 40



�
���������	�
��
���� �2� ������
������

,�������0�+������������������	���������
�
�����������	�
��
�����$�	�$������������
����������	���$�����������������������
����
�������!�������������
������������(�

�� ��������������������
������������������
�
�����������	�����-����
��������!�
�� ��������������������	������������	������������
����
�������'��������	���
�	���!�
�� ��������
�������	������������
������������
�!�
�� ������������	��������$���	���
����
������	�$���
�������������������

������������
����������������
'�����������
�#�����	�������
�����
��������
�����
������������������	�����������	���
��#�����#�����������
�!�

�� ����
��'���$�����$������������������;�������$
����
���������#�������������
��������$
����
������������!�

�� ����
��'�������	���$���������������������������$
����
��
����	��#���
��
��
�������<9���1����"��� ���
�3��>!�

�� �������������=����		����*���������������������������+����� �
����
��
�	��!�

�� ��H����		������
�����������$���&��'�
���
��	��'�����������!�
�� �����������
���������	������'��$�������������	����$���
��
!�

�

���������������/5B��	������%������$����������		#��$���������%�����������������

���
���������
��	�#��$�������$
�(��

�� ����H���		����������
�������
�		!�
�� ��2�H�
������������������
�	���������������!�
�� ��3�H�
�����������������&
�	�������������
�������
�<�!$!��#�	�

�����
>!�
�� ��A�H����
������������������������$���!���
�� ����$���������
������������	���
����
���������	����
	�	���	�!�

)����������������������������� ���������������������������������(�
����'����������
������0+����
�(�
8
����	��(�

�� ?���	����������������
��:���
��$
����		�����
�����$�������		�%�����	���	�����
� �
����
���
�����7���������$���������
����<��H��
�� ������
���#����
�3�H�������		�>!�

�� ������	�
������
����	��������������������
��������
�����&�H���
����
%�����
��������
��������$�
����
�� ����#����	�$�����		�&����$�������#�	�����
�������	�������������	�����/������.�	��.�����
�����
!�

���������������������������������������� ����
�����������	
��
�����	�
���
�����
��
��������
��
���������
��	
��������	���
	��	
���
������
����	��

���
����
����
�����
��
�
������
����
��
�����	����������	
	��	
��
��������
���
	�
��������
���������	
��
�����	�
��
���	��
�	
��
�����
��
�
������ �

�����	
��
!��������
����
��
	��
�"����
��
���
�����	
��
��	���
�!�#�$��

%��
&'�
�����	���
��(


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
$)
��
���������	
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+,
�	���
,
���
�
���
��
$)-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+/
�	���
*
���
�
���
��
$)


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
,/
��
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
+)
�	���
+$
���
�
���
��
,/-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	
.

��������
+$
�	���
0
���
�
���
��
,/


�� �
���
����	��
	���
��
�"���
	�
./
��
�������
�����	�
�
	��	
��
�
*
���	
���
��������
$+
�	���
+
���
�
���
��
./-
�������
�
������
���
��
)
���	

.
��������
+*
�	���
1
���
�
���
��
,/


���
�������
	��
���	
������
������	���������
�������
��
���������	
��
�����	�
��
�	
��
	��
����
���
��	�
�����
��
���
���
����
��
���	��
�

Page 41



�
���������	�
��
���� �3� ������
������

8
�)��	�
��(�
�� ���$����	�
��%�	���	������������
������$������
����4H���
�����������
�

���	�
��%�
����$�����H������
�:����	�
��!��������#������������$��������
��	
����������'��$���	���	��� �
�����$
����		�����
������#��$������
������
%�
#�������
�:�	���	������$��	�������	��
��������	���	�!��������������
�$��
�������
����
�����$�	���	�����������������$����	��!�

�� ����
�	�����	��.$�.����������
�$�����'����������	��
������
��������	�
���
�������&�)�����
��������	
������
�#����������������������������������
	���	���
����$��������	����$��
��������)��������
���#��������
����������)����!��

�#���
%����������%�������*���		�������#��
�� �����
�������	���	�������	���������������������
����������������������		��

�������� �
����
�����
���������
��<���:&����>!���������$����#������
�����
�������	������
����$�������������
�������!�

�� �	�%�� �
����
�.�����	�
����������	#�
�	���	��������������������
�������	�
�����
��
��%�#����� ��
�����������
�	���	���
�����H�	#�
������������		��
<4H�����
���#����AH>��������
�:�	���	���
����3H�	#�
�<��H�����
���
#�����AH>!�

�� � ��������'����
���
����
���
��
�������������� �
�����	���	��������	��!��"��
�
�����
����������	���������������������������������������*������������
>���������������������������������*��
��������*���������������������
������>��������
	��
���������
!�+����������������
�����$�������	�����
� �
����
����
���������$����
�$�	�
���������������#��'�����
��������
������
�
���:H%����������������>�����%�#����������
���������3����	����
���������$�

�$�	�
	������
����������	�������
!�,���������<,���� �
����
��������>�������
�������
/��������� �
����
��������������
�����������������
����������$��
� ���	����?��	�,��
����������������+�#
'��$������
���
����!�8
�
� ���	�%�������0����
�����A���
��2%�������	���������'�����
�����,��
�������������������������������%��
����-�	'��$�����B����
����
�������
����������������������
����
���������#�������43H�����������	�����
��
	�����$����
���������	������	�������
���	�!�

�

�
����������
����������������������#�����������������������#������#�
���
���!�
8�$�
�������#����#
�������������
���
����������#�����#�����������������������
I8
���$���B��
�K�#�����	'�����������	�����������	���	������$�������
��6�$	����
����-
	�����	����
$����������
�����������#
�������������
�����������	���	��
��
���6�
��!���
�

Page 42



�
���������	�
��
���� ��� ������
������

;������/1�+�
���������������������������������������

�
��������B�����������������������������AA2�&���2�
+�
��(�&���������������
�����	���+�
����6�$	���%��������������������������
���	�����-����
�6�
��

�

�

��

��

��

��

2�

2�

3�

3�

�A
A2

�A
A3

�A
A�

�A
A:

�A
A;

�A
A4

�A
AA

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
�2

��
�3

��
��

��
�:

��
�;

��
�4

��
�A

��
2�

8���

B
��
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
		
��
��
�

�
��������	���	�������������<6�
��>

�
��������	���	������������<6�$	���>

'�������������
��������	�����	��������(�
�

����	��������������������������������������������	��������������	�������
�����������	���	��������-�)������������%�������,�����$�������	������������
���#�������������-�
�

����
��'������������
�������!����������������	���$�#��$����
����
���	��
%��������%�
������#�	�������
����������		�$��$���!�-��F�9������%�������#�	�%����-����
��
�������������������%�/�������	����$����.���
�$�.�	���%������������
����������������������
�����������������
��	�#��$��!�
�

���
������������
���������������
�� �
����
�%�����������$����/���������'��$��
�
��������������	�
��
��
��������!��"��#������������������
�������
�����'�����
I
����$�����K�#��������������	�������
�����
��������������$���
����������������
��$��	���	�����������	�������	����#�����#�		�
���	�!��"���������
�����������#������������
���'	����������������
���
����%�#�����������
���
��	����$�����		�
	�!��
�

���
�������$���������
���
�����
����)����	����	��'��������
�����,��
���������
�%�
��������
����
���	����
�����	������	��������%����	��������
������
���	������������������$����$������������!��"�������
����	�
	�����
���������'����
�
��	�&�&$
�������
�������
�����
���������	��������$���������������
����	����&�
������
����#��������
������
��������
������������	�����������������
�$����	���!�
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;�����������������(�
�
$
�����$������
����������������������$���
�		��$�!�������		���
���
�$�
�
��
���
�����#
'��$�����������������%������������#�����'�����
���	��������
�
����
����������	�������-�		����$���
���
����%������������#�		�������������#����������#�
���	�������-�		����$�9�
�!����������������������	�������������������
�$��	�������
� �
����
��$��$��
#�
�!�

Page 43



�
���������	�
��
���� �:� ������
������

&���'����
"�������
�����������	���������
��
�	���	��	���	�������	��������������������	����������
�������$���
�	����	����!�"��#�������������
�	���	�����
��������$����������	��	��
��
�$��$���
�	��
��������������������
��������
������	���������������	��������	������������
�
���	���������
��������

���	�!�-��#�		����������������������������	�
����������������&�����
�����������
 ���������
���
$
���!���
�
+��������	�#
'��������������������$��/����#
'��$����#����
$���������!�
;��%����������=�����+�������������	�����������������������������*�����������
����$�������=������#�	�����������������������$���+*���������+������������������
������������%��#�%����������������=��������	��������-�"��#�		������
����	�
	��
���
������������������
����)����	�%�,��)��������
�%�)�����)����	%����	��
����������#����	������	���������������
�������������)�����)����	!��������#����	���
����-�		����$�9�
��#�		�������������	�
	�����	�������
����$������#
'��
#�
��!�

����������������
/-�����������
��������	�����������������)�������2�������������������
'����*������2�����
9��1�
�������%�� �
����
�.�����	�������-�		����$�9�
������������������
�����	���
"��
�������9�
�����	�������������$����$��������������������/
��
�
���%����	��
����	��	���
$�����
�� �
����
���������	��
�$�	�
	������
��
$
�����$������������
��
$���!������
����������
����%��		�?��	�����
�����%�,��)��������
������
���	��#������
��
�����������������������$����$����������������������
�����
�
�
�����
�
���!�
�

1-���E���������	�������+*������,���������������
9��0��������%�������#����	������	�����������	���$
��������
����������
��	�&�&
$
������
���$�����
�����������
����������%�������	�����		�
$�������������
� �
����
�!���������	�����	����#
'��$��$����
�#�����		�?��	�����
����������,��
)��������
�!����������	����������������������	�������-�		����$�9�
��
�

.-� ���������������������
�����������)��#�����	������������
�����������2�����
9��0��������%�����+�
�����
���
�����9�
��#��������������$����������&
��������
����I,�������K��
/����<������		#��������#�����&
�����������������	����������
���������������#��������
����)����	���������	���+�
�����>����	������
�����������
������������������������	��$��$�������������
�!�

Page 44



�
���������	�
��
���� �;� ������
������

,�������6�+������&�)���7��8����
�����(�
?�������
.�������	�B��
�������	������������
��'��$���������	��	�#�������������
��/
�����
���
���������
�������	������� �
����
���
������		#��$�����
�����(�
�

/-� ���������������������������������������05�������
"��6�$	���%����
�$�����	���	��	���������������
��������3�H��������A;�!��
����$
������	#���#������
�������
�����������������!�

�

;������/.�+�������,������������������F<�

D�������	���������������������������������F<$�/3?:�+�1559

�

�

3

:

4

��

��

�3

4:&
4;

4;&
44

44&
4A

4A&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A�

A�&
A2

A2&
A3

A3&
A�

A�&
A:

A:&
A;

A;&
A4

A4&
AA

AA&
��

��&
��

��
��&
��

��
��&
�2

��
�2&
�3

��
�3&
��

��
��&
�:

��
�:&
�;

��
�;&
�4

����

��
��
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


9��

-���
+��
���
)���

���	��	��	

�
+�
��(��"������������	��	�+�������8���������I�
��'��$����,
����9
�����K�###!���!
$!�'��
�

1-� 4���������������������������������#�����*�������������������
��'��
�����E�
����	���	��

.-� �����������������������������������������������#�����������
��'��$�
�������$���
��'��$�������
����������$
��!��)������������$����$�
#����������������
�����$�
����	�!��

0-� �����$�%������������$����������������������
	�������!�"�����������!�
�� "��6�$	����������:%��:%�2:����	��������
���	��	&
�	�����������!��
�� ���������
�����������
���	��	&
�	�����	���
��������������	����

���	����������	����������!��
�� �	��	�������������
��������	���
%��#�	%��
����%���
��%�����%�	�
�� �

���������$��M���������������
���%�
���������
��	���������������
�������������		�'����!�

�� �	��	����
�������	���
��
����A��%�������������
��������������
������	�������		����
����
%�������������
����$�<������
�������;�H��������:�
���
�����#��������@�2��������4@�A>!�

6-� �����������������������������������������*������
����
��	��������	��	�������		��(�����������	��	�����:;H�	����������;���������
�A4;!�

Page 45



�
���������	�
��
���� �4� ������
������

:-� ��������������	�����	������������*���������
��������
���������������
�$�%���������������������.����.�	���	����
��'��$��
��
�
��$���#�����������	��!���	���$������������$����3�����
�%��
��'��$������		�
���������	��	�����
����������
��'������
����������������
'�!��8
������
#���
��'�����������	#�	���	%������
����������
�3�����
��#���
��'�����
�����%��	��	���������������
��'������
����������������
'�!��8
������������
�$�%��
��'��$��������������	��	����
����������
��'��������
%����
������������
	����!����
���6�$	���%��
����
��������	����������������	��	�.�
������*%��	��	�
��������2����	���������������!�
9-� ������������������	������������������%��#��
?-� ������	������������������*�������������$����������
����
����
��#��%�

�������		���������������$����#��'�����
3-� �������������� 	����+�������*��������� ���������������	���������$��

��������	���
������������ ����
!�
/5-��������������������	��������������������������	���������������������
?��	��������������#�������
��������������
�	��������	��	����� �
����
�!���
����$
������	#���#���#�������	������������������	��	�
�	�����
����������
��
����$������	��������������������#
��������	�������
!��

�

;������/0�+����������������������������������������

%
���	&"���	
�	'
������	��"����
��	��	()�
�������	�����������	�
	���
�
�	
*������	�
�����
��	+���	����,-	.//��/0	�
	./1/�11

�

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

�7���

	7���


7���

57���

��7���

����8�� ����8�	 ���	8�
 ���
8�5 ���58�� ����8��

&
"

��
�

6���

1�(���

2�����0����

�
���9�':'�;:<=>������������������%����!�*����(�����+�*����������7�#%'�-.�����!���6������� �

���������������������������������������� ����
���������	��	�������'�����������������	�������������������
���������������������������	�<�!�!����������>�������
��
�����
�#�		��
���
���		�����
������	�����	��	!�����$
��������
�
�������	��	�
�	������������������ �
����
��
������	���������&�����
�	������������		#��$����	�����������M�

�� 9
����������
%�)���
����%����
��
�������
�	���%�Q���������������������%�Q
���
���
��������������
�

�

Page 46



�
���������	�
��
���� �A� ������
������

)����������������������������� �������������������������������(�
?�������
.��
��
���������������������		�(�
���
���
���#����������������'�!�
�>������
��������� �
����
����


�����������	��
�����#�		�&��
�		�������������
�������	���	�����
��'��$��
��$
����		��
����$������������
�������
��
� ������$��
�������
�����
����
������������
���	��������
������		����	��%�
���������������
���!�
�>��	���$�������
�������$��$���%�������#�	�%�� �
����
�.��	���	���
�������
������
����6�$	�������
�$�!�
'�������$�%�������*����������������������%�����*���������������A����*�����
%����-�

'�������������
��������	�����	��������(�
����������#& ()*�������
�
�����
�� �
����
����������
��	��	����������
�$��
�
��������&��������������
������$����	�����		��$������
��'�������	�!��
�

,�%����%����������������������I���
������������������������
�������K%������		�����
������������
�������������������#�	������������
����������
�����������$�!�"�����
��$�	����	�'�	����������������

�����	�������������	�������
�������������'��$����������
#�������������E�%�
�	� ���	�������$�	�#����������	��
��#���������	���������
�
��'��$!�
���#����������
	�����
�������	����#�
������������$���
�$�
���$���'��$���������&
��	��	�$��	����%��������	����
����������
���
��������
�����.�
�������.������$��
#���������������	��	!�"�����������
�������
��'���������������%���	�'����'��$%�
�	��	����������������������������	���
�%������������	������	��������������
����	���������J!�9�������%�������
���$���#�����'��$JJ!�
�

�����	���������#�������#&��$�����
���$�(�
�>���#����#��������������#���������	�������������#���������
���
��'��$���� �����
��
�$��������������		��$��$
���!�
�>�"����������������������������	������'��$��	����
�����������������
�$��.��
��
�����������.����
�����!�
�

-���
��$�������
������������������ �
����
������#�����	������
�����#����
�
��	��&	�$�����
��������������������#
'��$�#����?��	�����
�����%�������+�����
���
���
���
�!�+���������$��#
'����������#��������������� ��������!�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������

��*�����;�����������������(�
?�������
.��
������������#������	�
�����		�����
��$������
���
��������������
��
���$���
�� �
����
�!�������������������������#�		!�����#���
���$���������	��������
����������$��������������#�		&
$���������
���$��$
���#
'��$���
��������

$���������!�

Page 47



�
���������	�
��
���� 2�� ������
������

�

��
���
��2��
�
�����
����$����$�� ���	�����$���
$
���(�
�

�!� )���������������
�� N�	�����
����
�����������������������		������
�������������#������
���

�
������
!��?��������$�
����
�0�	��D�+�����������#������
��������2H����
���������
�����	�����
���������
���#���������������
���������	����
���
!���������������	����:A���#�
��
�����/������������2������!������)����
����������$$����
�������%�#������3���#�
���	�����
��������������������
���
	�������
!������������������	�$���
���
�����
���		��$��
����
�������
���
����)����!��"���������%����
��$���
$������������������������	��
��	��
���	������C6�#���
����/�
�����������������
��
��'��$����	��������#��
��;�H�
�����������
�����������������!������������������
����������#��
������	
���������������C6�����
�	��������������
�����$�������
��4�
#�����	��	�
�	�������������!�

�!� ���	���
�� )��
���������$����	����������������
�������
�,����������
�

�
��������
������	��#�������
��$��������
�
���

�	��
���	����
������
�	��	�
�	�������
�!��������
�����������������������	��������7����������
$��������������	��	�����'����������������
��������
��������
���	������
����
�����
���$	�!�

2!� )��	�
�������O��$����	��
�� ?������	���������		#&���������������
��������	���

���	����
��

����	��	���
�������
����������������������	��	��������
�������
�
����������#�������$����	�!��-
'�����	������
#�������	�����$���
�
��
#������
�������������������$��	��	!�

�����������������
/-� ����������
���������	������������
9��1�
������������� �
����
��)��������+��������
���
�������������� �
����
��
�
�$������	��	���������������	������
�������	��	��
��������������
��
������������
�������
�
�����!�-������������
���#
'%�������	��&�$��������
������
�����	��	�+�
���$��,
���������������������������������		������	���!���
�

1-� �������������������������������	�%��+�����%����
9��1�
�������%������ �
����
��)��������+��������
���
�������������� �
����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9�
�����	�������
��������$
����������������� �
����
��
)��������+��������
���
�����#�		���'����	����
	����������$������������
����
�
�	��	�������������$��
$
���!�������
$
�������	�����
��
����������� �
����
��
���	�������-�		����$�9�
�������������	���"��
�������9�
�!�
�

.-� 
��*�����������>���������
9��0����������������
��������.���.������	��������$������	�����#���	�������
��
�$����� �
����
�����	
����������
�������������%�����	�����	��������
������
������
���	����	�����������
��'��$��	��	!����������������������	�����	����'��
����
�#�����
����������!������������$������	������	�����������
��	$�����
��
�$������� �
����
��)��������+��������
���
�����#
'��$�#����� �
����
�.��
���	������	�������!�
�

Page 48



�
���������	�
��
���� 2�� ������
������

0-� �����4������������
9��0���������#
'������ �
����
��)��������+��������
���
��������	�����	����
#
'�#��������� �
����
��)	�����	�)���������$�,
���������������������������
����	���������
����
�������������
�$���
���
����
���������
�������$�%����/����
��
$����$������#���
���
��'��$������
���	�	���	�������	������$������Q�"��
��
�����$��	�����	�����
��������
����������
���

����	���	����
��'��$�����
#�����
����
�����
��������������
���!�
�

6-� 4�*������������A��������A�	������������������������%��������*�������
9��0��������%������ �
����
��)��������+��������
���
��������	������
�������
��������	�
����������
�������
�������������������������	��	�
�	�������
�%�<�
�
� ���	�%���
�$����$������������������>%��������������������#�
����
�����������
�		������#
'!��+���������	�������	������
�#��������������������
����������	������
���		���
���������������
$
�����!�6 ���	��������������
�������
�(��

�� �
����$�����#
'���+�
��������
��#���
�����������
������
���������
�	���������'�����$�������$������������������!�

�� 8�����$���#�#������
������$�����
&�$����	��!�
�� 6��
���$�	�������$���������!�

�

Page 49



�
���������	�
��
���� 2�� ������
������

,�������:�+�;��������<�������������
)��������	������������������������/
�����������������	����������	����!����
���������	����������������#�������
������
����
�������
�����
�$��������
%�
#���
%����
���
�������
���������!��
�*�����������	���������$�������	�������=���#������	�������������������*�������
�������������������	��������!���#���
%����������������
����������
������������
�
��������������
���������
���
����$����
���		������������
�����%���
	��
�������������������#�����������������	���	�����%������#�����$�����$�����
��$����!���
�

�����������
�
��
����������������
����������������������!�

/-��������,���������������'�	��������!�,�'�"�
"�����������������������
��$��	�'��1������		���B���������#�	���
�������+����
<1B+�>������
����������������
��<������!>�
������������
����������������'���������
�����%��������������	���������������������!���#���
������
������������������
������*�������
���������
�$��������
��	�������������
����������)����!��
�

�"�4����������������������������������������!4���"��
1B+������������
�������������	���������'��!��"�����$��������
�����������	��
��
����<�!$!���
�$������������
����
���
���
����#����>���������������	��
������$�<�����
������>!��"����������������	�����
����������	��#���
���	
�������
��
��#�		���#������������	'��
�����������������������������������������������
���
����
���
�
�������
������
�!�����
�����������1B+�������
�������������������
�#�#�
���
�������������������&2!���������������������*�������*������	���
���������������	��������!�+�������������������������
������������%����
����
�	���	�����%����
�����	�����	��
����
��%�������������$������������������
����
��
���		����!�
�

;������/6�+�4���������������	���������

�*��	�����	��	()�
�������

�

��

��

��


�

���

���

���

����8� ����8� ����8� ����8� ����8	 ���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��
�

�	�
"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

-.�����!���? 0����(�������������(��������% �*

�

Page 50



�
���������	�
��
���� 22� ������
������

�"�(���������������������!(#����"�
�
����������������
������������
������������������	��������
�����

����#��������
�������		��	���&��
�������$��������		����������	��
	����������
�!������������
����
����	��	�������
�	���	������������	�*���������������������	��������
���
�����
�����������������������
��������	������������
����������$���#�����
���	����������
������������
����
�����$��		����!�
�

�������������
�����������
���������������������������
���	���$�������������

��������������������������;@�4!���
�

;������/:�+�,������������		�����'�	�������������	���������

���������	
���������� 3������
�		�����	��	()�
�������	.//4�11

�

���

���

���

���

���

���

	��


��

5��

���	8
 ���
85 ���58�� ����8��

2���

�
��
�

�	�
"

��
�	

�

	�
��

��
	�
��

�

�	
��
�	�

��
��
��

��
�	
��
	(

)�

�

��
��
��

�
�

-
'������������������ �
����
�����	�����������
�����������
�
���������������
���%�����������	����
��������$�����
�����������������	�����������������������
�����	���	����������������
�����!�

1-��������������!�2"������	���������
�9�����������
��	��������������������,����	������������
�����#���������	��
������������	��$������#�����������
��������������
���
����������������	����$�����
�����������
����������!��"������������
�����%������������9���������������������	����
�������$�������	��$������������� �����������������������	��������
�����!�
�

"��� �
����
�%����������
������������9���������#���:��<�4�#����	��$�������������
22�#�������
��9>!���������		����
�������������
�������������
�	��������
������������
����������$��9������&QG��
�����	�����
����
�������������
�������������	������	��!��

Page 51



�
���������	�
��
���� 23� ������
������

�
;������/9�+���������������������������������	���������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
���
����������3����
������
���������#����������

��$%��������������
��������%�
����
����������$��������� �
��)��������)��
#�		�����
����)����	!������������
���
�$��
�����
���#�������������������	��	#�
����������QG�
���!�����������������
�����*�����-�
�

;������/?�+��2�������������������D�������������$���	��������$�15/5�
�

?��	�����
���� )����� ���	�����
B������
����%����
���	�����

)��
#�		� �3� �2A%���� ��!��
� �
�� 2�� �3A%2��� ��!3�
+����� �
����
�� 3� �2�%:��� ��2!��
N�	����-������
��� :� ��4%;��� ���!��
-����� �
����
�� �� ���%���� ��3!A�
QG� � � �2!A�
+�
��(�6���������9�+�
���		�����+������ �
�
���
�����(��������N�		������	����
�������Q����

�

����)�����1�����	�������
���������	��	���
����������
$�����
��
���$��		��9�������
�������	����$����������	��
�����������4�H��������!��� �
����
�*�����������	�
�
��������
����������
�������A3!�H�������A�<����������������N�		������
�$�>�
����
���#����43!�H�������;�����4A!2H�������4!����$�����	�����
������
�����
���
������������
���$�����
	!���������
���������������9���
��������
��������
�����$
����
���$
��������������	������	���$����
�������
����������������9!��

.-�����������������
��*����������'������������
�"� ,����������������������
"�������������������������&����������������	����	������	�������
������!��?���	����
�������������
����	����������������� �
����
���������������
��%�#��������'��
�#����$���������$�����	���	�������������
�!������#
'�#���������������&$��$�
�
����������		����������
��
��'�����$%����	���$�$���
�	��
������%����������
�����)�������%����
���	���$�����
�����	�
�������$���		�����������!���
�

������#�)��	�����	���"��
������+������#�����#����P	���*��������8��
��
����������
������	���	����������	��	��
�'�����$����
����������
��������7��	������$�!������
���		������
������	�
���#���
��������������������#�����		#���������������		��
�������
��������������!�

8����  �������	�
,�����

���������/55$555�
����������

155:� �2� 4!3�
1559� ;:� ����
155?� �:� 4!4�

1553� ��� 4!:�

15/5� :�� A!��

Page 52



�
���������	�
��
���� 2�� ������
������

�"� 4������4���������������*�������!44�"��
Q���'�������������������������
��������:H���
�����	�������
������ �
����
�.��
	���	���
������������������B�$��!��������
��������������������
	��������������
��$�
����	���������� ���	�(�
'���������������	�*�����������������%��������������������?$555��������	�
��������������������*�����������	��������-���	������$��������������05�
������%������		������*�����������������������$�?��������������������
�*�������	�/�����������������%�������-���
�������
����	#���#������$����������#��������������� �
����
����
�		����
���������$��
����	�
����$����������	��%������%�
���		�%��������
���������������
�	�!��-��#�		������������
������������#���
���������	����7��
��
*����������
���
���!�
�

;������/3�+�,��������'�������������

,��������'�����������������6

;�H

;�H

4�H

4�H

A�H

A�H

���H

R2
��
;@
�4

R3
��
;@
�4

R�
��
4@
�A

R�
��
4@
�A

R2
��
4@
�A

R3
��
4@
�A

R�
��
A@
��

R�
��
A@
��
�

R2
��
A@
��
�

R3
��
A@
��

R�
��
�@
��
�

R�
��
�@
��

R2
��
�@
��

R3
��
�@
��

R�
��
�@
��

����

B
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
���
�

������
��%�������%����		�	�
���
������@"������������	��N����������
��

1���	��%�1���������B���		�����
��

�
�

�"� ������
�������������*�������!�
�"&����*����������*�����������
�����
�	���#��������������		�����
���<��N>����������������$�������������
����	�
�����
�!�"��������������������	�������H����� ��		�����������������#����$������
�������������������
�	������	���$���	����������	�������#�������������$�����
����	����
����	������
!���
���
��������
���������
�������
�������	����������$�	���������������������������	��	�������
�
�������$��������N��������:������4%���������������#��������#���������������
��
�;�H����		���
����	������
�!���
��*�����������%����*�������*����	����
����������055�%����������������������F<�%����0��*�����*���������������
��	��������-��
�

-���
����

���	�����������$�����2
����
����$�
	��#������N������������D�������#�
��
���������������	����
�4���
��$�����@���D���������'���
�����#�	����
�����2�
��/����������� ���������������	�����A�H����������$��$
��!����������������
$
����%�
���
��$���N����		�$�
	������������$�����4����
�%��'��	������
��$��������������
���
����A@��!��
�

�������%�*�����������������	�����������	��%��������������*��������	�������-�

Page 53



�
���������	�
��
���� 2:� ������
������

0-�����������������������	��������
�"� �'��C��'����
�"N�������������������������������
��������������	������������������QG!�"��
�������������������������#������
�����
������%���$����������
��������������
�%�
������$����������
��	���!��
�

"������������������#���%���
��$�������$��%����������7��
����������QG�
���
�������
����������
�����
�������������		���
�$��.����
��� .�������7���!�
�

"�����A%����
��#�
����3���#����$��������"N�����������N�		���#�����������AH�

���������
�����4!������������$��
���	�!�������������#����$�����3��#�
����#�
�"N����$��������� �
����
�!������� �
����
����$�
���������������		!��-����������
��#
'������
���
�������$��������
�������������$����
��!�
�

;������15�+� �������	���%��'��������������������������	��������$�1555+1553�

&"���	
�	'35	��6	�����
���-	
()�
�������-	.///�.//7

�

��

��

��


�

���

���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���� ���	 ���
 ���5

�
�

�"� ������������
"��������
�����������
��� ��		���
���������������������
���		����#������
�
���
����������������%������������/
������#������
���
�������	����
�$����'��$�������
P������� *��
��������!����������������
������
��������
���������������+� ��		��
�
��������������������
��	����������������������
���������������
���	�������
����
���	��������������������
��	�������	���
�	���!�
�
"��������
�����$�������������		�������/
��� ��		���
���������������������		���
��$�����
	�������
!��)�	�����������$�����	�#�
���
��������������������	���$�����
��
�������������
���������)�	���������������
��������4��������A��
������$������
������;!���

Page 54



�
���������	�
��
���� 2;� ������
������

;������1/�+��������������������������������	��������	�����	�������������������1550+15/5�

�

'��;��������<�������������������
��������	�����	��������(�
"��
������
���		���������$������#
'�#�����������	����
��������$����������
������		�������/
�'�		�
���������������������
��������	���J!!!�
��#!�
�

��%�*��$��������������������������E���#�������*������������������������*�������
%���������*���������������������������������%������������������$����
�����������*����������������������������������������������*��������������
��������#�-�
�

G�		�
����������	������������
��#�		�����$������� �
����
������
������������
&
�
��������
���!��)���������$�	��������
�7��
���������
���	�����$������#�		�$�������
������������������'��������������������������!�
�

���������������	
�	������	���	����������������������������������������
�����	
������
 !�����������
�

)����
�����������������������������������������������������
��*�����;����
�������������(�
�

�		�����
��������������
�������
���������������	�
��
����������������!�
+�
�����%���
���		�������������$���������������������������������	�����
���$�
��
�����	����3����
�!�

����������������
/-�4��������*�������������������������������������������
������
���
������	������	�����������	��	����	����
��������$����������#
'�
�	��	����
��$������
������$�������	�
�
$��������������	������	�����
��������
�����������
���		����������������	�������������
��$�����@��@�2�������'��
���
�
����������������
	��������������������������#����
$��$�'�		�
���������!�
�

1-�����������������������������	����������
�����
������
���
������	������	������	��
��
����'�		�
�������������������������
�����������������7����������	�
��
��!�
�

Page 55



�
���������	�
��
���� 24� ������
������

�����������������������	�'�	�������������������������������������
0����+�
���$����������������������
�������&�3�
���	������	���+�
���		�����������
��
���	����
��������$�����"����������������������
� �
����
��+���
�)������������
���
�������	��	�+�
���$��,
������'������������
���
�
� �
����
��
����)��	�����
���������������������
�� �
����
��
� �
����
��)��	�
�������O��$����	����	����������
��
� �
����
���)����
�
�����������
,��)��
����"��
���������'��D�1�
��������
?��
����/�
��	��
������
��,�������
�������
� �
����
������
����������������
��������������
���
�������
�
�������
���#
'�

��#��%����������
����� �������� 
�	���� �� ���� ����� ���� ��	���� �� �		��$���� #���� ���
������� ���
��'�#	��$���#����$
�����	�����'�!�
�
��$�	��9�'�
��
1�
'�9���
�	����9�
����
+�
���9
����
���	�)����
0�	�������
��$��
)	�
����#�		�
������6���
��$��
�
����8��������
+��'����������	���
�����������
9��'��������
�������������
0���0��'����
���	��0��'���
��#�0�����
1�
��G������
G����G��$�
�������?��)����
0���?����
��
+���?�$�
��	�1�)�
����

N�	�1�����$�
��
+����1�		��
G�����1�����		��
)����
����1����
���
B�����*)��
�
0���������
+�������B����
����
+����B�#���
+���+������
0�����+������
���	�+�����
N�	�+�����
1��
��+��		����
,��	�+��'�
��
,���+#���	��
1�
������$#�		�
1�����#�������
���
��'����	
��
8���		���
���		����
����
�N��6�����
���
�	���-�����
0��'���-�	��
������

�
�

Page 56



HWB9 

 1

 
 

Proposed Outcome Measures and Target Indicators for  
Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board 

 
 
 
The overall goal of the Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board is to: 
• Ensure people can access the health and social care they need as simply as possible 
• Support people to live independently and with dignity to reach their full potential 
• Improve outcomes for adults who are most likely to need support 
• Promote better financial management and greater efficiency 
 
 
Priority 1 – Integration of health and social care 
 
Closer integration of health and social care has been a recurrent goal of public policy for at 
least the past 40 years. Different solutions have been proposed including full structural 
integration into a single system. Other models are geared to overcome barriers and 
facilitate closer joint working and sharing of resources to give a seamless service. The 
successful integration of health and social care offers three potential benefits1: 

• Better outcomes for people, e.g. living independently at home with maximum choice 
and control 

• More efficient use of existing resources and a reduction in the demand on 
expensive health and social care services by avoiding duplication and ensuring 
people receive the right care, in the right place at the right time 

• Improve access to, experience of, and satisfaction with, health and social care 
services 

 
Politicians and the Oxfordshire Clinical Commissioning group have made clear their 
commitment to the integration of health and social care and it’s what the public want.2 In 
the context of intense financial and demographic challenges facing both services 
integration offers opportunities to improve outcomes for people and use of resources for 
organisations. 
 
A key priority is to support carers to have a high quality of life and enable them to continue 
to care for their family and friends for as long as possible as this is important to them. In 
2009 we surveyed 1500 carers, 80% of who said their quality of life was good or 
acceptable. In 2012/13 there will be a national survey of carers. This will give us a useful 
benchmark and in future years we will look to improve quality of life. Carers tell us that 
having a break from their caring role is key to enabling them to continue caring. As such 
we have initiated a joint health and social care funded scheme which provides direct 
payments for carers from GPs.  
 
 
 
 
 

                                                 
1 The Kings Fund – Integrating Health and Social Care 
2 “achieving integrated care would be the biggest contribution that health and social care services could make to 
improving quality and safety” (National Voices 2011) 

Agenda Item 9

Page 57



HWB9 

 2

This suggests that outcomes for Priority 1 should be: 
 

Outcomes for Priority 1 Key Indicator definitions for Priority 1 

• Single point of access to fully 
functioning integrated health and 
social care community services 

• Ensure overall satisfaction of 
people and their carers across 
health and social care system  

• Increase the number of carers 
breaks funded jointly and 
accessed via the GP 

• Clinical Commissioning Group 
formally established 

  

• Fully functioning integrated health and social 
care community services teams established 
with a single point of access  

• Older peoples commissioning strategy 
agreed 

• Section 75 pooled budget agreement  
• Satisfaction of people who use services with 

their care and support  
• Patient experience of primary care  
• Establish a baseline for measuring carer 

satisfaction 
• Carers breaks jointly funded and accessed 

via the GP through a direct payment 
• Clinical Commissioning Group authorised 

 
 
Making a real difference in Oxfordshire 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim to 
achieve: 

• a single point of access to fully functioning integrated health and social 
care community services provided by Oxfordshire County Council and 
Oxford Health NHS Foundation Trust by 31st  August 2012 

• a single Section 75 agreement to cover all the pooled budget 
arrangements by September 2012 

• an interim older peoples commissioning strategy will be implemented by 
the County Council in April 2012. The intention is to develop a joint older 
peoples commissioning strategy and joint commissioning arrangements 
by December 2012 – joint strategy / pooled budget arrangements / lead 
commissioner 

• Clinical Commissioning Group authorised by April 2013 
• More than 60% of people who use social care services in Oxfordshire will 

say they are very satisfied with their care and support 
• a baseline for measuring carer satisfaction 
• More than 51% of people are ‘very satisfied’ with their GP surgery 
• 800 more carers breaks jointly funded and accessed via GPs  

 
 
 
Priority 2 – Support older people to live independently with dignity by reducing the 
need for care and support 
 
Ensuing that people can live independently in their own homes is key to the quality of life 
they can enjoy and it’s what people say they want. A key concern raised by older people is 
that they are "supported to access a range of networks, relationships and activities to 
maximise independence, health and well-being and community connections (including 
public health)."3  

                                                 
3 http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_library/Resources/Personalisation/TLAP/MakingItReal.pdf Page 7 

Page 58



HWB9 

 3

 
The issue of dignity in care is high on the national and local agenda. The NHS 
Confederation states that the overarching commitment to dignity in care is to help keep us 
physically and mentally well, to involve us in decisions about our care, to help us get better 
when we are ill and, when we cannot fully recover, to stay as well as we can and live as 
independently as we can until the end of our lives. 4 
 
In 2011/12 we have the highest level of delayed transfers of care in the country. The last 
published figure for delayed transfers of care in Oxfordshire was 176 (January 2012).  A 
key priority is to improve performance significantly through the work overseen by the 
‘Appropriate Care for Everyone’ programme which brings together the Clinical 
Commissioning Group, the County Council and the two key NHS providers – Oxfordshire 
University Hospitals Trust and Oxford Health. 
 
In part, due to the pressures of delayed transfers of care, in the first 10 months of 2011/12, 
437 people have been placed in permanent care home placements. This is 15% higher 
than the corresponding period in 2010/1, and includes a 45% increase in admissions direct 
from hospitals. In line with its demographic profile Oxfordshire admits relatively few people 
into care homes; however people who are admitted live in care homes for longer. The 
Oxfordshire Director of Public Health in his annual report said that the proportion of older 
people in the population continues to increase, which means that every pound spent from 
the public purse has further to go. Therefore we wish to support people in the community 
for longer and ensure that the number of people admitted to care homes does not 
increase. 
 
A key demographic issue is the growth of people with dementia. This group of people need 
services provided by appropriately skilled staff, delivered in the right environment. To 
enable us to develop better services we need to increase the rate of diagnosis of dementia 
which currently stands at 37.8% (South Central SHA 2011 average is 41.4%) of the 
expected rate. We would look to increase this to 50%; this would take us above the 
national average. 
 
To reduce delayed transfers of care and ensure people achieve greater independence and 
need less expensive care and support or no care at all, we will offer more people a 
reablement service and look to improve the efficiency of the service. In the first 10 months 
of 2011/12 1561 people started reablement and 44% of those who completed the service 
needed no on-going long term care. Local analysis of demand identifies that over 3000 
people per year, and national evidence from the department of health indicates that over 
50% should need no on-going care. Reablement is defined as “services for people with 
poor physical or mental health to help them accommodate their illness (or condition) by 
learning or re-learning the skills necessary for daily living” 5 
 
A key way people are supported to remain independent is through good quality information 
and advice. In an national survey 55% of social care service users said that they found 
information 'very' or 'fairly' easy to find. In Oxfordshire this figure was 53%, and amongst 
older people 52%.  
 
The outcomes we have chosen to measure our progress are as follows: 
 

                                                 
4 http://www.nhsconfed.org/Documents/dignity.pdf page 10 
 
5 http://www.csed.dh.gov.uk/homeCareReablement/Toolkit/vision/#item2 

Page 59



HWB9 

 4

Outcomes for priority 2 Key Indicator definitions for priority 2 

• Reduce people who are in a hospital bed 
who are medically fit for discharge 

• Ensure the number of older people 
permanently admitted to care homes 
does not increase 

• Increase our knowledge of who has 
dementia and what services they are 
receiving 

• Increase the number of people receiving 
a reablement service and increase the 
proportion of them who need no on-
going care at the end of the service 

• Increase the proportion of people, 
including carers, who say that they find 
information easy to find. 

• Average number of Oxfordshire 
residents who are in a hospital bed 
who are medically fit for transfer 

• Number of older people permanently 
admitted to care homes 

• % of people diagnosed with dementia 
• Number of people who start the 

reablement service 
• % of people who leave the reablement 

service who need no on-going care. 
• % of older people who use services 

who find information easy to find. 
 

 
 
Making a Real difference in Oxfordshire 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim to 
achieve: 

• a reduction in delayed transfers of care so that Oxfordshire’s performance is 
out of the bottom quarter 

• No more than 400 older people permanently admitted to a care home 
• 50% of the expected population with dementia will have a recorded diagnosis  
• 3250 people will receive a reablement service 
• 55% of the people completing the reablement service will be completely 

reabled and need no on-going care 
• 55% of older people who use adult social care say that they find information 

very or fairly easy to find 
 

 
Priority 3 – Living and working well:  
Adults with long-term conditions, physical or learning disability or mental health 
problems living independently and achieving their full potential  
 
Adults living with physical disability, learning disability, severe mental illness or another 
disabling long-term condition consistently tell us that they want to be independent, to have 
choice and control, and to be able to live “ordinary lives” as fully participating members of 
the wider community.  
 
Consistently national and local strategy development tells us that people define the ability 
to live ordinary lives in terms of:6 
• Improved access to information that supports choice and control 
• improved access to responsive housing and support  
• Improved access to employment, study, meaningful activity and involvement in the 

community and wider public life 

                                                 
6 No Health without Mental Health, the Sayce Review; Better Mental Health in Oxfordshire, Promoting Independence, a 
commissioning strategy for people with a physical Disability 2010-15 

Page 60



HWB9 

 5

• Responsive, coherent services that help people self-manage their care, but flex to 
provide support as people’s needs vary 

• Improved support for carers, to help them help the people they care for live as 
independently as possible   

 
The closer we get to meeting these aspirations the more people will meet their full 
potential and move towards independence. The outcomes we have chosen to measure 
our progress are as follows: 
 

Outcomes for priority 3 Key Indicator definitions for priority 3 

• Increase the proportion of adults of 
working age who use services who 
find it easy to find information  

• Increase employment of people in 
contact with secondary mental 
health services  

• Increase the proportion of people 
with a long-term condition who feel 
able to manage their condition 

• Increase the proportion of people 
with learning disabilities and severe 
mental illness receiving annual 
health checks  

• Number of service users (adults of 
working age) who find information easily  

• Number of people receiving mental health 
service in paid employment at the time of 
their most recent assessment/review 

• % of people with a long-term condition 
who have sufficient support from local 
services to manage their condition 

• % of people diagnosed with severe mental 
illness or a learning disability having an 
annual health check from their GP  

 
 
Making a Real difference in Oxfordshire. 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim to 
achieve: 

• 55% of working age adults who use adult social care say that they find 
information very or fairly easy to find 

• 15% of people with severe mental illness using secondary mental health 
services are in employment 

• 95% of people with a long-term condition will feel able to manage their 
condition 

• 95% of people living with severe mental illness will have an annual physical 
health check by their GP 

• 50% of people with learning disabilities will have an annual physical health 
check by their GP  

 
 
 
Annex 1  Adult Health and Social Care Partnership Board full list of measures 
 
This report identifies the key measures that health and social care can work on together to 
improve outcomes for people. The list below identifies all of the measures that the Adult 
Health and Social Care Board would like to monitor to deliver its key priorities – 
 
Priority 1 
• Achievement of key milestones for the delivery of integrated community services teams 

closer to home 

Page 61



HWB9 

 6

• Milestones for joint commissioning arrangements and Clinical Commissioning Group 
will be met 

• (maintain) the overall satisfaction of people who use services with their care and 
support  

• (maintain) overall satisfaction of carers with social services  
• (maintain) patient experience of primary care 
 
Priority 2 
• (reduce) emergency admissions for acute conditions that should not usually require  

hospital admission broken down by GP  
• (improve) recovery from stroke  
• (reduce) emergency admissions within 30 days of discharge from hospital  
• (reduce) permanent admissions to care homes 
• (reduce) delayed transfers of care  
• (increase) the proportion of people who use services and carers who find it easy to find 

information 
• (increase) carer reported quality of life 
• (increase) the amount of spending on personal budgets which supports people in their 

own home  
• (improve) Older people’s perception of community safety 
• (reduce) Falls and injuries in the over 65’s 
• (reduce) Hip fractures in over 65’s 
• (reduce) Excess winter deaths 
• (reduce) the impacts of dementia 
• (increase) efficiency & effectiveness of the reablement service   
• (improve) the experience of health care for people at the end of their lives 
 
Priority 3 
• (increase) the proportion of people who use services or who care for them who find it 

easy to find information about support 
• (increase) proportion of people feeling supported to manage their own condition 
• (increase) proportion of adults with learning disabilities who live in their own home or 

with their family 
• (increase) proportion of adults in contact with acute mental health services who live 

independently with or without support  
• (increase) employment of people with long term conditions, learning disabilities or in 

contact with secondary mental health services  
• (increase) the proportion of people receiving talking therapies 
• (reduce) unplanned hospitalisation for chronic conditions 
• (increase) the number of acute mental health inpatient admissions that have been gate 

kept by the Crisis team 
• (increase) proportion of people using social care who receive self directed support and 

those receiving direct payments  
• (increase) the proportion of people who use services who feel safe 
• (increase) carer reported quality of life 
• (increase) the proportion of people with learning disabilities and severe mental illness 

receiving annual health checks 

Page 62



HWB10 

Informal Shadow Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 
 22 March 2012 

 
Proposed Outcome Measures and Target Indicators for the 

Children and Young People’s Board 
 

 
The overall goal of the Children and Young People’s Board is to improve 
outcomes for all children and young people living in Oxfordshire.  This will be 
achieved through delivery of the four top priorities: 
 

1. Keeping all children and young people safe 
2. Raising achievement for all children and young people 
3. Narrowing the gap for our most disadvantaged and vulnerable groups 
4. Having a healthy start in life and staying healthy into adulthood 

 
 
Priority 1: Keeping all children and young people safe 
 
Safeguarding children is everyone’s business.  In order to for children to 
achieve outcomes in any other areas they need to be safe and secure.  Many 
different agencies are working together to make the child’s journey from 
needing help to receiving help as quick and easy as possible; and improving 
the effectiveness of the help in promoting the child’s safety and development. 
Practitioners in all agencies work to prevent, identify and protect children 
living in abusive and neglectful situations.  There is excellent multi-agency 
work around domestic abuse and reducing the impact on children.  In 
Oxfordshire the Safeguarding Children Board runs a multi-agency training 
programme to support the whole workforce working with children and young 
people. The Board also provides evidence-based guidance to help 
practitioners and the Board challenges the different agencies to deliver 
services to the highest standards. 
 
We know that nationally more children are becoming subject of Child 
Protection Plans.  The 0-4 year olds are the largest single age group subject 
to plans and in Oxfordshire we have the high rates of children subject to 
plans, compared to previous years.  Despite this we have good performance 
in responding and assessing children’s needs without delay, in line with 
national best practice. Work to address this priority must continue to focus on 
promoting good partnership working with families by well-trained and 
supported workers from a range of professions.  The professionals must have 
the skills, capacity and resources to deliver effective and appropriate 
interventions to keep children safe.  There needs to be public confidence that 
the system responds promptly and appropriately to all levels of concern. 
Managers and senior officers must have established methods of appraising 
the quality of the practice with children and families so that they can lead their 
organisations in continuous improvement. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 63



HWB10 

There is strong evidence that positive attachment between mother and baby 
starts in pregnancy and promoting attachment from pregnancy onwards and 
intervening early where problems are identified, is a key multi-agency priority. 
Equally, for older children and teenagers, it is vital that they and their families 
are able to receive help at an early stage as difficulties are merging, so that 
they are protected from serious problems later on.   Early intervention 
services such as the Children’s Centres, Early Intervention hubs and the 
Health Visiting service are key players in keeping children safe.  This means 
commissioning and delivering services that are evidence based, affordable, 
timely and focused on early intervention. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Outcomes for Priority 11 Indicator definitions for Priority 1 
 

• Decrease the proportion of 
child subject to repeat child 
protection plans 

 
• Be able to evidence that the 

majority of interventions are of 
an adequate, good or 
outstanding quality2 

 
• Percentage of child subject to 

repeat child protection plans 
 
 

• Quality assurance audit reports 
from agencies reported and 
reviewed in OSCB 

 
 
 
Making a real difference in Oxfordshire 
 
In accepting these priorities the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 
should aim to achieve: 
 

• No more than 15% of children who become subject to a child 
protection plan have previously had a plan. 

• A regular pattern of quality assurance audits undertaken in the 
following agencies and reviewed through the OSCB: children’s 
social care; children and adult health services; early intervention; 
police.  Over 50% of interventions showing adequate, or above, 
overall impact in all agencies’ audit reports. 

 
Priority 2: Raising achievement for all children and young people 
 
In Oxfordshire measures of achievement are often lower than expected and 
do not match statistical neighbours. In 2011 GCSE results were disappointing.  

                                                 
1 These are currently interim outcomes and indicators until the national consultation on Safeguarding 
Indicators is completed. 
2 London Safeguarding Children Board multi-agency audit and grading toolkit 

Page 64



HWB10 

The overall picture is a slow pace of improvement, but there is inconsistency 
between Districts for certain groups and subjects.  Early Years shows a better 
than national average improvement which could be built upon.  We know that 
specific pupil groups in Oxfordshire do not do as well as their peers in 
comparator authorities.  This includes children on free school meals, children 
from Black and Minority Ethnic Groups and those with special education 
needs.  There is currently specific concern about reading standards at Key 
Stage 1 in some school. 
 
The Health and Wellbeing Board will aspire to seeing every single child being 
successful and reaching their potential; thriving in an outstanding learning 
environment throughout their education wherever they live across the county.  
Every single school or setting will be judged to be at least good and be 
aspiring to constantly improve, to become and remain outstanding. 
 
 

Outcomes for Priority 2 Indicator definitions for Priority 2 
 

• Increase the number of young 
people achieving 5 GCSE A*-C 
(including English and Maths). 

 
• Increase attainment at Key 

Stage 2. 
 
 
 

• Increase attainment in literacy 
at Key Stage 1. 

 
 

• Increase the number of 
schools judged as “good” or 
“outstanding” 

 

 
• Percentage of young people 

achieving 5 GCSEs at A*-C, 
including in English and Maths. 

 
• Percentage of children 

attaining at least Level 4 in 
English and Maths at Key 
Stage 2 

 
• Percentage of children 

attaining 2b or above in 
reading at Key Stage 1. 

 
 

• Ofsted inspection ratings for 
primary schools. 

• Ofsted inspection ratings for 
secondary schools. 
 

 
 
 
 
Making a real difference in Oxfordshire 
 
In accepting this priority the Health and Wellbeing Board, in 2012/13 
should agree to: 
 

• 63% (3900 young people) of young people achieve 5 GCSEs at A*-
C including English and maths (currently 57.4%) 

• 80% (4880 young people) of children achieve Level 4 or above in 
English and maths at the end of Key Stage 2 (currently 74.8%) 

Page 65



HWB10 

• 76% (5000 children) children achieve Level 2b or above in reading 
at the end of Key Stage 1 (currently 74.3%.) 

• Reduce the number of young people not in education, 
employment or training to 5.5% (950 young people) 

• 88% (204) primary schools and 86% (28) secondary schools with 
be judged by Ofsted to be good or outstanding. 

 
 
 
Priority 3: Narrowing the gap for our most disadvantaged and 
vulnerable groups 
 
Over the past three years there has been a real multi-agency focus on 
‘breaking the cycle of deprivation for families’ and on ‘narrowing the gap for 
vulnerable children’, driven by national and local priorities.  The Health and 
Wellbeing Board is in a good position to understand the picture in Oxfordshire 
through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and more recently 
through specific needs assessments e.g. Child Poverty Needs Assessment 
2011 and the Director of Public Health’s Annual Report 2012. 
 
Through this work we know that: 
 
• There are a relatively small number of wards with persistent deprivation 
• 11.7% children live in poverty in Oxfordshire 
• Almost 1 in 4 children in Oxford City are living in poverty 
• In Oxfordshire 73% of children in poverty are in lone parent families. 
• In 2011 only 22% children on Free School Meals achieved 5 or more A*-C 

GCSEs. 
 

We know that being pregnant under 18 years of age will result in a number of 
poor outcomes for young women and indeed for their babies, therefore the 
drive to decrease the trend in conceptions year on year is crucial.  More 
recently the national focus has been on working with ‘Troubled Families’ in 
order to reduce worklessness, reduce antisocial behaviour and crime, 
increase school attendance and reduce the cost of interventions in the longer 
term.  In Oxfordshire it is estimated that there are 810 families who have 
multiple and complex issues and a Project Team is currently working to 
identify these. The DCLG3 have yet to publish the proposed framework for 
identification of success measures but addressing the needs of these families 
will be a multi-agency priority during 2012/13 
 
Action to address this priority is cross cutting with both the Adult Health and 
Social Care Board and the Health Improvement Board.  However, taken 
together it is proposed that addressing teenage conceptions and turning 
around the lives of troubled families are the two areas that will make a 
significant impact on this priority in the next year. 
 

                                                 
3 Department for Communities and Local Government who lead the national Troubled Families 
Programme. 

Page 66



HWB10 

 
 
 
 

Outcomes for Priority 3 Indicator definitions for Priority 3 
 
 

• Reduce the number of teenage 
conceptions 

 
 

• Turning around the lives of 
‘Troubled Families’. 

 
 
• Teenage conceptions rates. 
 
 
 
• Awaiting confirmation from DCLG4 
 
 

 
 
Making a real difference in Oxfordshire 
 
In accepting this priority the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 
should aim to achieve: 
 

• A sustainable decrease in the teenage conception rate5  
• Targets as required in the new DCLG framework when published 

 
 
Priority 4: All children have a healthy start in life and stay healthy into 
adulthood. 
 
The JSNA shows that overall Oxfordshire is one of the healthiest counties in 
the country to be born and grow up.  Despite this, death rates in socially 
deprived wards are higher than in affluent areas.  Young people being 
admitted to hospital for self-harm (including ingestions and poisoning) remain 
a cause for concern.  Emergency admission rates to hospital are higher for 
young children living in wards with high levels of deprivation, especially for 
viral infections and gastroenteritis.  Breastfeeding rates in Oxford and 
Banbury remain significantly lower than the rest of Oxfordshire.  By Year 6, 
obesity levels in children living in Oxford City are significantly higher than the 
national average.   
 
An increasing number of young people with longer term or life limiting 
conditions (such as Autistic Spectrum Conditions or neurological disease) will 
need to continue receiving care and support into adulthood. We know that the 
most common causes of emergency admission to hospital for young children 
(under 5) are respiratory tract infections, viral infections and gastroenteritis.  
The most common causes of emergency admission for young people (11-17 
years old) remains ingestions and poisoning (both alcohol and drug related). 

                                                 
4 The indicators will be based on the national performance framework for Troubled Families. 
5 Further work needed on understand how the HWB Board can measure progress when data is released 
with a 14 month delay. 

Page 67



HWB10 

 
In order to build on the healthy start, the Health and Wellbeing Board will 
aspire to see that all pregnant women will have access to high quality 
maternity services and a choice of place of delivery; home’ birthing unit or 
hospital.  All children will have access to the full Healthy Child Programme 
from birth to school entry.  Parents will be able to access a wide range of 
integrated early intervention services.  Children with additional needs 
(including long-term conditions, life limiting conditions and special educational 
needs) will experience seamless provision from diagnosis, treatment and 
care, therapy and schooling.  There will be easy access to mental health 
support and where required, diagnosis and treatment (including for Autistic 
Spectrum Disorder).  There will be targeted and specialist services available 
for the most vulnerable children e.g. Looked After Children.  Sick children will 
be treated as close to home as possible and only be admitted to hospital 
when clinically needed. 
 
 
 

Outcomes for Priority 4 Indicator definitions for Priority 4 
 
 

• Reducing admission to hospital 
of young children with 
respiratory tract infections, viral 
infections and gastroenteritis. 
 

• Reducing number of young 
people who self-harm. 

 
• Effective transition services for 

young people with mental 
health problems 

 
 

 

• Rate of hospital admissions for 
young children (0-4 years) with 
infections and gastroenteritis. 

 

• Rate of hospital admission for 
young people who have self-
harmed 

 

• New service specification agreed 

 
 
 
Making a Real Difference in Oxfordshire 
 
This is a key priority where join up with the work of the Health 
Improvement Board is essential.  High rates of immunisation, 
continuation of breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks and reducing obesity levels 
in school children are all important indicators of a healthy start to life 
and are positive factors in reducing the likelihood of having poor health 
outcomes in the future. 
 

Page 68



HWB10 

In order to make a difference in Oxfordshire it is proposed that in 
2012/13 the Health and Wellbeing Board should:6 
 

• Reduce the number of young people admitted to hospital for 
episodes of self-harm by 5% year on year.  This means reducing 
by approximately 10 young people every year. 

 
• Reduce the number of young children admitted to hospital with 

infections by 10% year on year.  This means reducing emergency 
admissions from approximately 3100 to 2890 children. 
 

• Review and redesign transition services for young people with 
mental health problems.  This would mean there would be a new 
service in place from 1st April 2013. 

   

                                                 
6 The targets are numbers for these targets are based on forecast outturn position from Q3 monitoring 
data and will need to be updated when year end activity is confirmed. 

Page 69



Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



HWB11 

 1

Informal Shadow Oxfordshire Health & Wellbeing Board 
22 March 2012 

 
Proposed Outcome Measures and Target Indicators for Health 

Improvement Board 
 
The overall goal of the Health Improvement Board (HIB) is to: 
• Increased healthy life expectancy  
• While reducing differences in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy between 

communities 
 
 
Priority 1.  Preventing early death and improving quality of life in later years 
 
This priority aims to add years to life and life to years – something we all aspire to.  
The Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) illustrates the local position 
underpinning this priority. 
 
The biggest killers are heart disease, stroke and cancers.  Some of the contributing 
factors to these diseases are beyond the influence of the individual or of health 
services – genetics, age and gender, for example.  But a wider range of factors can 
be positively influenced by the lifestyle choices of the individual and early detection 
through screening.   
 
Work to address this priority must focus on primary prevention (i.e stopping disease 
before it starts) and early detection of illness.  Many of the major causes of illness 
and early death arise from lifestyle choices such as smoking – still the biggest 
contributing factor to heart disease, stroke and many cancers.  Screening 
programmes are designed to detect early symptoms of cancers and assess risk of 
heart disease and stroke.   Access to information and high quality services is key, 
especially for those at higher risk. 
 
This suggest that a major priority for the HIB should be to make sure we are helping 
people stop smoking, detecting cancer early through screening and checking people 
for a range of preventable diseases  through NHS Health Checks carried out in 
General Practice. 
 

Outcomes for Priority 1 Indicator definitions for Priority 1 
• Increase the number of smoking 

quitters 
• Ensure high levels of uptake for 

cancer screening programmes 
• Ensure high levels of uptake for NHS 

Health Checks 

• Number of smoking quitters 
• Cervical screening uptake 
• Breast screening coverage 
• Bowel screening coverage 
• Offer of NHS Health Checks 
 

 
In addition to this our work must focus on those who are most at risk.  The JSNA 
shows that there are differences between groups of people, with some faring better 
than others both in terms of their life expectancy and in their chances of living healthy 
lives into old age.  The differences include: 

• Women can generally expect to outlive men.   
• People living in some parts of the county can expect to live longer.  There is 

variation in life expectancy related to relative deprivation: 

Agenda Item 11

Page 71



HWB11 

 2

o In Cherwell District the gap between the most and least deprived 
wards is 9.7 yrs for men and 3.6yrs for women 

o In the City the gap between the most and least deprived wards is 7.7 
yrs for men and 6.5 yrs for women 

o For men in deprived parts of South Oxfordshire there is a gap of 3.6 
yrs and in West Oxfordshire a gap of 4 yrs.   

o There are no differences due to deprivation for women in South or 
West Oxfordshire 

o There are no significant differences in life expectancy by relative 
deprivation in Vale for either men or women  

 
Not only does deprivation reduce the chance of a long life, it also means people are 
more likely to be ill for longer periods before death.  Local data on levels of a range of 
diseases show that this is also true in Oxfordshire. 
 
This means that, as well as commissioning services for all, we must also target 
services at those who need them most. 
 
Making a Real Difference in Oxfordshire. 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim 
to achieve: 
 

• 100 smoking quitters above the national target.   
o The nationally set target for Oxfordshire is approximately 2400 people 

who quit for at least 4 weeks.  The aim is to stretch this target. 
• 2,000  adults receiving bowel screening for the first time  

o This screening is offered to people in their sixties, by post, every 2 
years.  The aim is to increase awareness and uptake. 

• 30,000 people invited for Health Checks for the first time 
o This check is offered to everyone aged 40 – 74 every 5 years.  

Invitations are sent from GP practices.  The aim is to increase 
awareness and uptake. 

 
 
Priority 2.  Preventing chronic disease through tackling obesity 
 
After smoking, obesity is the biggest underlying cause of high blood pressure, heart 
disease, stroke, diabetes, cancer and early death. It also increases immobility and 
makes any other disability more severe than it would otherwise be. 
 
Obesity is on the increase in epidemic proportions in our society.  Obesity in 
childhood is hard to shake off in later life and can reduce lifespan by around 9 years.  
Obesity adds £1m every year to the cost of the NHS in Oxfordshire. 
 
The JSNA shows that there is an upward trend in prevalence of obesity in adults in 
Oxfordshire, though this is still slightly below the national level.  Chronic disease 
associated with obesity, such as diabetes, is also increasing. 
 
The best ways to tackle obesity are to prevent it, detect it early and take early action, 
beginning in childhood. 
 
Children in Reception class and Year 6 are weighed and measured every year and 
results show that around 8% of reception year and 15% of Year 6 children are obese.  

Page 72



HWB11 

 3

This feeds through into every increasing levels of obesity in young adults. Making 
parents aware of problems early helps them to take action if they choose to. 
 
Levels of obesity are also linked to social deprivation, with more deprived parts of the 
county showing higher rates of obesity, so some targeting of effort is called for here 
too. 
 
Physical activity is an important component of maintaining a healthy weight and there 
is encouragement on this score, with Oxfordshire topping the latest Active People 
survey as the sportiest and most active county in England.  The survey showed that 
26% of the population participate in regular activity each week. Maintaining this 
position will be critical to good health in the County. 
 
Breastfeeding gives the best start to life and has been proven to lead to fewer 
overweight children and adults. Increasing the number of breastfed babies is the 
foundation of an obesity strategy for the County. Breastfeeding also brings a host of 
other benefits such as improved immunity and improved mother-child bonding.  
 
This suggests that outcomes for Priority 2 should be: 
 

Outcomes for priority 2 Indicator definitions for priority 2 
• Reduce the number of people who 

are overweight or obese 
 

• Number of children whose weight is 
measured 

• Percentage of children who are obese or 
overweight at Reception and Year 6 

• Breastfeeding initiation and at 6-8 weeks 
• Proportion of physically active and 

inactive adults 
 

 
 
Making a Real Difference in Oxfordshire. 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim 
to achieve: 
 

• Ensure that the obesity level in Year 6 children is held at no more than 
15% 

o The trend for the number of obese children at year 6 is rising, with 783 
children in this category in Oxfordshire in 2011, representing 14.9% of 
their year group.  It is important that this rising trend is halted. 

• 60% of babies are breastfed at 6-8 weeks of age 
o In Oxfordshire almost all babies are breastfed at birth and up to 60% 

are still breast fed at 6-8 weeks of age, though there are variations in 
rates that link to deprivation.  The national figure for prevalence of 
breastfeeding at 6-8 weeks in 2011/12 Quarter 3 was 47%.  The aim 
is to narrow inequalities gaps and maintain high rates in Oxfordshire.. 

• 5000 additional physically active adults  
o Surveys show that about a quarter of the population undertake 

physical activity or sport at least 3 times a week (3x30min sessions).  
The aim is to continue recent increases in participation rates. 

 
 

Page 73



HWB11 

 4

Priority 3.  Tackling the broader determinants of health through better housing 
 
The interdependent relationship between health and housing is not new. Since 
Chadwick established a link between the appalling living conditions of the poor and 
their ill health in 1842, many of the most significant gains in health that followed 
stemmed from Local Authority public health measures, such as clean water, 
sanitation, and reduced exposure to extreme cold.   We need to maintain our focus 
on the contribution that decent housing makes to health improvement and especially 
on the needs of more vulnerable communities.  It is proposed that this priority should 
address the issue of fuel poverty which affects people across all housing tenures, of 
all ages and all parts of the county.  We will also focus on housing support needs of 
the most vulnerable. 

a.  Fuel poverty:  This is an issue that affects young and old across the county and 
gets to the heart of the housing issue. 

A household is said to be in fuel poverty if it needs to spend more than 10% of its 
income on fuel to keep warm. The calculation takes account of household income, 
fuel prices and energy efficiency of the home.  Often the most vulnerable people, the 
elderly, the disadvantaged and those in poverty, are the most likely to be affected. All 
types of housing (owner occupied, private rented or social rented) and in both rural 
and urban areas can be affected.  Helping people to escape from fuel poverty will do 
a great deal to improve the health of the worst off in the county. 
 
 
 
b.  Inequalities 
Many housing organisations work within communities facing some of the worst 
disadvantage, scattered across the County, affecting old and young alike.  The links 
between poor housing and poor health can easily be seen. People living in poor 
housing also have: 

• Poorer health 
• Lower levels of skills and lower qualifications 
• Poorer school results 
• Higher levels of unemployment.  

 
 “A foot in the Door, a guide to engaging Housing and Health” (2011) summed up the 
situation well: 

"Considering multiple housing deprivation poses a health risk that is of the 
same magnitude as smoking and, on average, greater than that posed by 
excessive alcohol consumption, the case for action is clear.”  

 
Local data highlights local housing need in several respects.   

• thousands on housing waiting lists  
• hundreds living in temporary accommodation  
• over 150 living in hostels  
• About half of homeless persons aged under 25.  
• Thousands of over-crowded households  
• a shortage of homes with 3 or more bedrooms for rental to families 
• more than a dozen rough sleepers.  

The local Supporting People programme provides services that help people do things 
for themselves.  This includes particularly vulnerable groups of older people, people 
with physical, sensory or learning disabilities, people with mental health problems, 

Page 74



HWB11 

 5

people fleeing domestic violence, homeless people, young people at risk or leaving 
care, teenage parents, people with drugs and alcohol problems, ex-offenders and 
refugees. 

Approach to Priority 3 
a. Members of the Health Improvement Board have agreed that tackling fuel 

poverty by maintaining and developing work already in progress is an 
immediate priority.   

b. The Board members have also agreed that other housing issues also have to 
be tackled in partnership.  Work is currently underway to determine the 
specific focus for this work and to identify and recommend outcomes and 
indicators.  These will be advised in due course. 

 
The proposed outcome for Priority 3 is, therefore: 

Outcomes for Priority 3 Indicator definitions for Priority 3 
• Reduce the number of people 

who are affected by fuel poverty 
 

• Other overall aim linked to 
inequalities in housing to be 
determined. 

• Fuel poverty 
 
 

Indicators which could be used in the focus on 
inequalities in housing include: 
• No. of people presenting as homeless or on 

housing waiting lists 
• No. of families in temporary accommodation 
• Rough sleepers 
• Housing condition indicators e.g. HMO 

licensing requirements being met 
 
Making a Real Difference in Oxfordshire. 
If we accept these priorities, the Health and Wellbeing Board should aim to achieve: 
• 250 households per year helped to escape fuel poverty as a pilot.  

o Currently over 27,000 households in Oxfordshire (10.5%) are designated 
as “fuel poor”, with similar rates across all districts (9.8 – 11.6%).  Some 
rural wards have up to 20% households in fuel poverty.   

• A second outcome measure relating to inequalities will be agreed  
 
 
 
 
Priority 4   Preventing infectious disease through immunisation 
Immunisation is the most cost effective medical public health intervention.  Levels of 
immunisation for childhood diseases in Oxfordshire continue to improve, but it is 
imperative that this is maintained.  Constant vigilance is needed to make sure that 
individual children have access to immunisation. This means working closely with 
GPs, community nurses and individual families.  
 
The Oxfordshire JSNA shows high levels of coverage but some targets are still not 
being met and there are early signs that our high rates have begun to slip a little: 
 
High levels of immunisation result directly in lower levels of serious diseases.  For 
example, since the measles, mumps and rubella vaccine was introduced in 1988, the 
number of children who develop these conditions has fallen to an all-time low.  All of 
these diseases can kill or cause lifelong disability. 
 
 

Page 75



HWB11 

 6

The proposed outcome for Priority 4 is therefore: 
 

Outcomes for Priority 4 Indicator definitions for Priority 4 
• Ensure high rates of coverage for 

childhood immunisations 
 

• Childhood immunisations from birth 
• Immunisation boosters at 1 year 
• MMR immunisations at 2 and 5 years 
• Human Papilloma Virus vaccination for 

girls (12 -17yrs) protecting them from 
cervical cancer. 

• Flu vaccination for at risk groups aged 6 
mth – 65 yrs 

• Flu vaccination for over 65s 
 
Making a Real difference in Oxfordshire. 
If we accept these priorities, and assume a steady birth rate in the county, the Health 
and Wellbeing Board in 2012/13 should aim to achieve: 
 

• 8000 children immunised at 12 months (maintaining the high coverage) 
o Target coverage for booster in 1 year olds (for Diptheria, Tetanus, 

Whooping Cough, polio and meningitis) is 96.5%.  Oxfordshire 
performance is on track. 

o Target coverage for pre-school booster (for Diptheria, Tetanus, 
Whooping Cough and Polio) is 95%.  Oxfordshire is currently below 
target, but in the best 20% nationally 

 
• 7700 children vaccinated against MMR by age 2 (achieving 95% 

coverage) and 7300 children receiving MMR booster by age 5 
(increasing coverage by 1%) 

o Target coverage for the Measles, Mumps and Rubella booster at age 
5 is 95%.  Oxfordshire is currently below target, but in the best 20% 
nationally. 

 
• 3000 girls receiving HPV vaccination to protect them  from cervical 

cancer  
o Target coverage for this vaccination in 12-13 year old girls is 90%.  

Oxfordshire has been performing well 
 

• 80,000 flu vaccinations for people aged 65 or more. 
o Target coverage for flu immunisations for over 65s is 75%.  

Oxfordshire has met this target 
 
 

 

Page 76



HWB13 

Oxfordshire Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
 

The Health and Social Care Bill currently making its way through Parliament, places a 
statutory duty on Local Authorities to establish Health and Wellbeing Boards. By April 
2013 the boards are expected to be fully operational.  
The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment will 
both be statutory requirements of the Health and Wellbeing Boards. 
 
 
What is a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy? 
 
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategies are made up of the top priorities agreed by health 
and wellbeing board members.  These priorities are the focus for joint work and form a 
basis for (but not the totality of) the members’ own commissioning plans and decisions. 
 
The strategy is the mechanism for Local Authorities and Clinical Commissioning Groups 
to address the needs identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and to set out 
agreed priorities for collective action. The priorities should be the things requiring the 
greatest attention and should focus on the things that can be done together that will 
make the biggest difference1.  The strategy should also include details of how success 
can be measured and what outcomes will be achieved. 
 
 
What is a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)? 
 
JSNAs are tools to identify the health and wellbeing needs and inequalities of a local 
population to inform more effective and targeted service provision. They provide a 
framework to examine all the factors that impact on health and wellbeing of local 
communities (including employment, education, housing, and environmental factors) 
providing impartial evidence on which to base local decisions2. 
 
The JSNA is designed to encourage joined-up responses to complex issues by providing 
a shared evidence base for planning. Joint health and wellbeing strategies will build on 
this to identify priorities for commissioning and decommissioning. 
 
The Oxfordshire JSNA is currently available on the Oxfordshire data observatory 
website; it is planned that the data will be refreshed by March 2012 and redeveloped by 
March 2013. 
 
http://www.oxfordshireobservatory.info/wps/portal/dataobservatory/data?WCM_GLOBAL_CONTEXT=http:
//apps.oxfordshire.gov.uk/wps/wcm/connect/occ/DataObservatory%2FData%2FThemes%2FJSNA%2F 
 
 
Planning timetable for a Health and Wellbeing Strategy in Oxfordshire 

• March 2012 – JSNA data refreshed 
• April 2012 – Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy drafted from the priorities 

agreed by the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 
• May / June 2012 – consultation period for Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
• July 2012 – Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2012-2016 agreed by Health and 

Wellbeing Board.  Strategic priorities embedded in member organisations plans 
for 2012-16 

• March 2013 – JSNA fully revised and published 

                                            
1 JSNAs and joint health and wellbeing strategies – draft guidance, Dept of Health, Jan 2012 
2 JSNAs and joint health and wellbeing strategies – draft guidance, Dept of Health, Jan 2012 

Agenda Item 13

Page 77



HWB13 

• July 2013 – revisions to Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy agreed based on 
the 2013 revised JSNA.  Revised outcomes set for 2013-16 as appropriate.  
Strategic priorities embedded in member organisations plans for 2012-2016 

Page 78


	Agenda
	5 Note of Decisions of Last Meeting
	6 Approval of Terms of Reference for the Partnership Boards
	HWB_MAR2212R03
	HWB_MAR2212R04

	7 Overview of the new and emerging powers and duties of the Health & Wellbeing Board
	8 Priorities from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment for Health and Wellbeing as summarised in the Director of Public Health Annual Report
	9 Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Adult Health & Social Care Partnership Board
	10 Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Children & Young People's Partnership Board
	11 Proposed outcome measures and target indicators for the Health Improvement Partnership Board
	13 Joint Health & Wellbeing Strategy and Forward Plan

